

**March 18, 2005**  
**No. 12**

# **STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE**

**Web Site Address: [www.gencourt.state.nh.us](http://www.gencourt.state.nh.us)**



**Legislative**

## **SENATE CALENDAR**

**REPORTS, AMENDMENTS, HEARINGS,  
MEETINGS & NOTICES**

---

**THE SENATE WILL MEET IN SESSION  
ON THURSDAY, MARCH 24, 2005 AT 10:00 A.M.**

---

## **LAID ON THE TABLE**

**SB 29**, relative to processing absentee ballots. 2/17/05, **pending motion Floor Amendment (0227s), Internal Affairs, SJ 6, pg. 70**

**SB 71**, relative to amending warrant articles in towns that have adopted the official ballot form of town meeting. 3/10/05, **pending motion, ITL, Internal Affairs, SJ 8, pg. 104**

**SB 109-FN**, relative to catastrophic special education funding. 2/24/05, **pending motion ITL, Finance, SJ 7, pg. 80**

**SB 116**, relative to payment procedures for the utility property tax. 3/17/05, **pending motion Floor amendment (0720s), Ways and Means, SJ 9, pg. TBA**

**SB 162-FN-A**, increasing the appropriation to the firemen's relief fund. 2/24/05, **pending motion, ITL, Finance, SJ 7, pg. 80**

**SB 180-FN-A-L**, increasing certain motor vehicle registration fees and appropriating the funds for local government records management programs. 3/17/05, **pending motion ITL, Transportation and Interstate Cooperation, SJ 9, pg. TBA**

**SB 197-FN**, relative to captive insurance companies and reciprocal insurers. 3/10/05, **pending motion, OTP, Banks and Insurance, SJ 8, pg. 98**

## **REPORTS**

### **BANKS AND INSURANCE**

**SB 69-L**, relative to certain insurance liens.  
Ought to pass with amendment, Vote 6-0  
Senator Barnes for the committee.

**SB 112-FN**, relative to viatical settlements.  
Ought to pass with amendment, Vote 4-2  
Senator Barnes for the committee.

**SB 209-FN**, relative to licensing of money transmitters and check cashers.  
Ought to pass with amendment, Vote 6-0  
Senator Gottesman for the committee.

**SB 220-FN-L**, relative to the payment of medical benefits costs for certain group II permanent firemen members injured in the performance of duty, and for disabled group II members of the retirement system.  
Inexpedient to Legislate, Vote 4-2  
Senator Odell for the committee

**SB 223-FN**, relative to licensing nondepository mortgage bankers and brokers.  
Ought to pass with amendment, Vote 5-0  
Senator Flanders for the committee.

### **EDUCATION**

**SB 38-FN**, relative to school building aid for certain receiving districts.  
Ought to pass with amendment, Vote 6-0  
Senator Bragdon for the committee.

**SB 79**, relative to the governance of the regional community-technical colleges.  
Ought to pass with amendment, Vote 6-0  
Senator Green for the committee.

**SB 131-FN**, establishing a school choice certificate program.

Ought to pass with amendment, Vote 4-2

Senator Johnson for the committee.

### **ENERGY AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT**

**SB 215-FN**, banning the incineration of construction and demolition debris.

Ought to pass with amendment, Vote 4-0

Senator Odell for the committee

### **ENVIRONMENT AND WILDLIFE**

**SB 103-FN-A-L**, relative to a shorefront maintenance fee.

Ought to pass with amendment, Vote 4-0

Senator Johnson for the committee.

**SB 128-FN**, relative to the establishment of emissions reduction standards as required by the Clean Power Act.

Ought to pass with amendment, Vote 3-1

Senator Gatsas for the committee.

**SB 133-FN**, relative to mooring permits.

Inexpedient to Legislate, Vote 4-0

Senator Johnson for the committee.

### **EXECUTIVE DEPARTMENTS AND ADMINISTRATION**

**SB 33-FN**, requiring the department of health and human services to seek national accreditation.

Inexpedient to Legislate, Vote 4-2

Senator Kenney for the committee.

**SB 144-FN**, relative to certified forensic counselors.

Inexpedient to Legislate, Vote 6-0

Senator Barnes for the committee.

**SB 146-FN-A-L**, establishing a civil legal services fund consisting of court filing fee surcharges for the purpose of establishing and operating a New Hampshire Legal Assistance office in Nashua and to provide for additional staff in other New Hampshire Legal Assistance offices.

Inexpedient to Legislate, Vote 4-2

Senator Barnes for the committee.

**SB 154-FN**, relative to costs of criminal and motor vehicle records checks required for employment.

Inexpedient to Legislate, Vote 5-1

Senator Kenney for the committee.

### **FINANCE**

**SB 49-FN**, including multiple sclerosis in the catastrophic illness program.

Ought to Pass, Vote 5-1

Senator Clegg for the committee.

**SB 62-FN**, allowing court fees to be paid by credit card.

Ought to pass with amendment, Vote 7-0

Senator D'Allesandro for the committee.

**SB 93-FN**, transferring the electricians board to the department of safety.

Ought to pass with amendment, Vote 6-1

Senator Morse for the committee.

**SB 108-FN**, relative to newborn screening tests and fees for newborn screening tests.

Ought to Pass, Vote 6-1

Senator Larsen for the committee.

**SB 113-FN**, relative to the use of federal funds for technology improvements within the department of employment security.

Ought to Pass, Vote 7-0

Senator Larsen for the committee.

**SB 115-FN**, relative to the transfer of responsibility for asbestos-related issues from the department of health and human services to the department of environmental services.

Ought to Pass, Vote 7-0

Senator Clegg for the committee.

**SB 181-FN-A**, making an appropriation to the postsecondary education commission for the purpose of the New Hampshire incentive program.

Inexpedient to Legislate, Vote 4-3

Senator Morse for the committee.

### **HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES**

**SB 34-FN**, relative to reimbursement rates for child care.

Ought to pass with amendment, Vote 4-1

Senator Martel for the committee.

**SB 101-FN**, relative to residential placements for certain disabled individuals between the ages of 18 and 21.

Ought to pass with amendment, Vote 5-0

Senator Estabrook for the committee.

**SB 110-FN-A**, establishing the New Hampshire Rx plus program for prescription drugs.

Ought to pass with amendment, Vote 4-0

Senator Martel for the committee.

**SB 147-FN-L**, relative to eligibility for local assistance and Temporary Assistance for Needy Families.

Ought to pass with amendment, Vote 5-0

Senator Gallus for the committee.

**SB 177-FN**, prohibiting the sale of certain food and drinks in the public school cafeterias.

Inexpedient to Legislate, Vote 4-1

Senator Letourneau for the committee.

### **INTERNAL AFFAIRS**

**SB 206-FN**, relative to the state code of ethics and establishing an executive ethics commission.

Ought to pass with amendment, Vote 6-0

Senator Larsen for the committee.

### **JUDICIARY**

**SB 37**, relative to disclosure of expert testimony.

Ought to pass with amendment, Vote 4-0

Senator Gottesman for the committee.

**SB 224**, relative to the committee on judicial conduct.

Ought to Pass, Vote 4-0

Senator Gottesman for the committee.

### **PUBLIC AND MUNICIPAL AFFAIRS**

**SB 124**, relative to the regulation of real estate brokers by the real estate commission.

Ought to pass with amendment, Vote 5-0

Senator Larsen for the committee.

**SB 143**, relative to the adoption and use of impact fees for public open space.

Ought to pass with amendment, Vote 5-0

Senator Martel for the committee.

### **TRANSPORTATION AND INTERSTATE COOPERATION**

**SB 95-L**, relative to noise from motor vehicles.

Re-refer to committee, Vote 6-0

Senator Letourneau for the committee.

**SB 138-L**, relative to motor vehicle liability for municipal workers.

Ought to Pass, Vote 6-0

Senator Burling for the committee.

**SB 145-FN**, establishing a medical/vision advisory board.  
Ought to pass with amendment, Vote 6-0  
Senator Letourneau for the committee.

**SB 178**, designating a certain highway the Gold Star Mothers Highway.  
Re-refer to committee, Vote 6-0  
Senator Flanders for the committee.

**SB 194-FN-L**, relative to the use of domestic steel.  
Inexpedient to Legislate, Vote 6-0  
Senator Letourneau for the committee.

### **WAYS AND MEANS**

**SB 25-FN**, relative to the allocation of a portion of unrefunded road tolls to the dam maintenance fund.  
Inexpedient to Legislate, Vote 4-0  
Senator Gallus for the committee.

**SB 107-FN**, relative to the sale of tobacco products.  
Re-refer to committee, Vote 4-0  
Senator Boyce for the committee.

## **AMENDMENTS**

### **Health and Human Services**

**March 16, 2005**

**2005-0697s**

**05/09**

#### **Amendment to SB 34-FN**

Amend the bill by replacing all after the enacting clause with the following:

1 Purpose. The general court hereby finds that an essential component of Temporary Assistance to Needy Families (TANF) is ensuring that parents of young children have access to safe, affordable child care. To enable low and moderate income parents who need child care to work, attend school and job training programs, and otherwise meet public assistance eligibility requirements, the department of health and human services shall establish reimbursement rates for child care services that better reflect the current market rate for licensed child care.

2 New Section; Public Assistance; Reimbursement Rates for Child Care. Amend RSA 167 by inserting after section 3-e the following new section:

167:3-f Reimbursement Rates for Child Care.

I. The commissioner of health and human services shall establish by rule under RSA 541-A reimbursement rates for child care under the state public assistance program. To the extent that federal funds are available through the Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) or the Child Care and Development Block Grant (CCDBG) programs or from other federal sources, the rates shall reflect the current market rate for such services, based on the following criteria:

(a) Effective July 1, 2005, rates for child care reimbursement shall equal the 50th percentile of the market rate as measured by the survey of weekly costs of licensed child care centers conducted on behalf of the department in 2004. Rates for license-exempt providers may be established separately from this provision.

(b) Effective July 1, 2006, rates for child care reimbursement shall equal the 75th percentile of the market rate as measured by the survey of weekly costs of licensed child care centers conducted on behalf of the department in 2004. Rates for license-exempt providers may be established separately from this provision.

(c) To determine the current market rate in subsequent years, on or before October 1, 2005 and every 2 years thereafter, the department of health and human services shall conduct a survey of the weekly cost of licensed child care centers and licensed child care homes. The survey may be based upon a valid statistical sample of all licensed child care providers in the state.

(d) Effective July 1, 2007, the base reimbursement rate for child care shall equal the 75th percentile of the market rate for licensed child care, as measured by the survey conducted under subparagraph (c). The department shall develop a sliding scale to adjust the base reimbursement rate based on the type of child care provider, family size, income, and such additional eligibility criteria as the department may establish.

II. No more than 20 percent of the total federal TANF funds received annually by the state may be used for the child care reimbursement rate increases required by this section.

III. In order to expand the accessibility and availability of quality child care, the department also may establish, by rule under RSA 541-A, alternative or incentive reimbursement rates for quality enhancements to traditional child care services, innovative or specialized child care, and alternative child care delivery systems. The department shall maintain and expand a system of agreements with child care centers participating in the child care public assistance program. Rates for such agreements shall reflect the additional administrative costs assumed by such providers.

3 Effective Date. This act shall take effect 60 days after its passage.

**2005-0697s**

#### AMENDED ANALYSIS

This bill requires state public assistance programs to include reimbursement for child care based on the current market rate for such services.

**Senate Judiciary**

**March 15, 2005**

**2005-0644s**

**09/01**

#### Amendment to SB 37

Amend the bill by replacing section 1 with the following:

1 Disclosure of Expert Testimony. Amend RSA 516:29-b, III to read as follows:

III. These disclosures shall be made at the times and in the sequence directed by the court. In the absence of other directions from the court or stipulation by the parties, the disclosures ***in a civil case*** shall be made at least 90 days before the trial date or the date the case is to be ready for trial or, if the evidence is intended solely to contradict or rebut evidence on the same subject matter identified by another party, within 30 days after the disclosure made by the other party. ***The disclosures in a criminal case shall be made pursuant to an order of the court, and the court shall provide that disclosures be made at least 60 days before the trial date or the date the case is to be ready for trial or, if the evidence is intended solely to contradict or rebut evidence on the same subject matter identified by another party, within 30 days after the disclosure made by the other party.*** The parties shall supplement these disclosures when required in accordance with the court's rules.

**2005-0644s**

#### AMENDED ANALYSIS

This bill changes certain requirements regarding disclosure of expert testimony in criminal cases.

**Senate Education**

**March 15, 2005**

**2005-0626s**

**04/05**

#### Amendment to SB 38-FN

Amend the bill by replacing all after the enacting clause with the following:

1 School Building Aid; Amount of Annual Grant. Amend RSA 198:15-b, I to read as follows:

I. The amount of the annual grant to any school district duly organized, any city maintaining a school department within its corporate organization, any cooperative school district as defined in RSA 195:1, [or] any receiving district operating an area school as defined in RSA 195-A:1, ***or any receiving district providing an education to pupils from one or more sending districts under a contract entered pursuant to RSA 194:21-a or RSA 194:22***, shall be a sum equal to 30 percent of the amount of the annual payment of principal on all outstanding borrowings of the school district, city, cooperative school district, joint maintenance agreement, or receiving district, heretofore or hereafter incurred, for the cost of construction or purchase of school buildings and school administrative unit facilities, to the extent approved by the department of education, provided that any school district may receive an annual grant in the amount of 40 percent for the construction of an educational administration building for school administrative unit, and provided that the amount of the annual grant in the case of a cooperative school district, joint maintenance agreement, [or] a receiving district operating an area school, ***or any receiving district providing an education to pupils from one or more sending districts under a contract entered pursuant to RSA 194:21-a or RSA 194:22***, shall be 40 percent plus 5 percent for each pre-existing district in excess of 2 and each sending district[;] in excess of one, and provided further that no cooperative school district, joint maintenance agreement, or receiving district operating an area school, shall receive an annual grant in excess of 55 percent.

2 New Paragraph; School Building Aid; Long-Term and Tuition Contracts. Amend RSA 198:15-b by inserting after paragraph I the following new paragraph:

I-a.(a) A receiving district situated in this state which is providing education to students from another school district situated in this state under a contract entered into pursuant to RSA 194:21-a or RSA 194:22, shall be eligible to receive the higher annual grant amount provided in RSA 198:15-b, I or RSA 198:15-v under the following conditions:

(1) The contract requires the receiving district to educate at least 70 percent of the public school students at particular grade levels from a sending district as provided in the contract.

(2) The contract contains a provision for the payment of capital costs for specific capital projects.

(3) The contract provides the manner in which school building aid is to be credited to school districts.

(4) The contract or sending district's obligation to pay capital costs is for a period of 10 years or longer.

(b) The provisions of this paragraph shall only apply for those years in which the contract is in effect. In all other years, the receiving district shall receive aid in the amount for which it would otherwise be eligible under RSA 198:15-b, I or RSA 198:15-v.

(c) No receiving district shall receive a school building aid grant which is less than what a single school district would receive under RSA 198:15-b, I or RSA 198:15-v.

3 Applicability. The provisions of this act shall apply to eligible school construction projects commenced on or after January 1, 2003. However, payment of grants shall be based on principal payments made for fiscal year 2006 and thereafter.

4 Effective Date. This act shall take effect 60 days after its passage.

**2005-0626s**

#### AMENDED ANALYSIS

This bill provides that a receiving district situated in this state providing an education to pupils from one or more sending districts situated in this state under a contract entered pursuant to RSA 194:21-a or RSA 194:22, shall be eligible under certain conditions, to receive annual school building aid grants.

**Senate Finance**

**March 15, 2005**

**2005-0624s**

**09/01**

#### Amendment to SB 62-FN

Amend RSA 490:26-a as inserted by section 2 of the bill by replacing it with the following:

490:26-a Court Fees ***and Fines; Credit Card Payments***. The supreme court shall establish by rule an equitable fee schedule for all courts in the state [by January 1, 1982]. ***All court fees and all fines paid into any court may be paid by credit card in lieu of cash payment. The courts shall collect a \$5 processing fee in addition to each fee or fine paid by credit card.***



2005-0624s

## AMENDED ANALYSIS

This bill allows court fees and fines paid into any court to be paid by credit card. A \$5 processing fee is added to each fee or fine paid by credit card.

**Banks and Insurance****March 15, 2005****2005-0640s****01/05****Amendment to SB 69-LOCAL**

Amend RSA 155-B:2-a as inserted by section 1 of the bill by replacing it with the following:

155-B:2-a Municipal Lien on Owner's Interest in Property Insurance Proceeds. A municipality may assert a lien on a real property owner's interest in any property insurance proceeds that are payable as a result of the damage or destruction of that property owner's real property located in the municipality. The municipal lien shall be subordinate to any lienholder of record, and to any right, title, or interest in such property insurance proceeds in favor of any lender holding a mortgage on such real property and who was named as an additional insured or loss payee, by means of loss payable endorsement or otherwise, on any policy of insurance insuring such real property. The insurer's obligations under this section shall commence upon its receipt of actual written notice from the municipality, a copy of which shall be sent by the municipality to the insured, and shall apply only to insurance proceeds held by the insurer as of that date and due to be paid to the owner. The lien shall be for the purpose of reimbursing the municipality for all costs permitted to be recovered by it under this chapter if the municipality elects to demolish and cleanup the property. The property owner shall, within 72 hours of the receipt of a written request by the municipality, provide the municipality with the names, addresses, agents, and policy numbers of all insurance companies which have provided the property owner with insurance on the property. The lien shall automatically expire if the owner rebuilds or demolishes the real property in the manner required by this chapter.

**2005-0640s**

## AMENDED ANALYSIS

This bill allows municipalities to place a lien on any insurance proceeds received by a mortgagee if the mortgagee's building is damaged and the mortgagee does not rebuild or demolish the building.

**Senate Education****March 16, 2005****2005-0668s****04/10****Amendment to SB 79**

Amend RSA 188-F:3-a, I(a) as inserted by section 1 of the bill by replacing it with the following:

(a) ~~Nine~~ **As** non-voting, ex officio members: the governor of the state, the commissioner and deputy commissioner of the regional community-technical colleges, the presidents of the ~~[4]~~ **7** regional community-technical colleges, the commissioner of the department of resources and economic development, and the commissioner of the department of education.

Amend the bill by replacing sections 3-6 with the following:

3 Regional Community-Technical Colleges; Duties. Amend RSA 188-F:4-a, II to read as follows:

II. Oversee the administration of the department and its institutions, ***including determining the organizational and administrative structure of the regional community-technical college system, excluding the planetarium as defined in RSA 12-L:1, III, the police standards and training council as established in RSA 188-F:24, and any other agency administratively attached to the regional community-technical college system.***

4 New Paragraph; Regional Community-Technical Colleges; Duties. Amend RSA 188-F:4-a by inserting after paragraph VI the following new paragraph:

VII.(a) Establish the salary of the commissioner of the regional community-technical colleges, who shall be appointed by the governor and council, and who shall serve as the chief executive officer of the regional



community-technical colleges, as its primary liaison with the general court and other elements of state government, and as chief spokesperson for the regional community-technical colleges. The commissioner shall lead and coordinate the efforts of the chief officers of the component institutions of the regional community-technical colleges, and shall have such other duties as the board of trustees may determine.

(b) The board of trustees may submit recommendations for commissioner to the governor and council.

5 Regional Community-Technical Colleges; Rulemaking. Amend RSA 188-F:5, II and the introductory paragraph to RSA 188-F:5, II-a to read as follows:

II. The commissioner shall nominate a deputy commissioner, with the approval **and confirmation** of the board of trustees~~[-who shall be confirmed by the governor and council]~~. The deputy commissioner shall serve at the pleasure of the board of trustees **and shall be qualified by education and experience. The board of trustees shall establish the salary of the deputy commissioner.**

II-a. The commissioner shall nominate for appointment by the board of trustees, an unclassified director of financial management. The director shall serve at the pleasure of the board of trustees. The director shall be qualified to hold that position by reason of education and experience. **The board of trustees shall establish the salary of the director of financial management.** The director shall be responsible for the following functions:

6 Regional Community-Technical Colleges; Presidents. Amend RSA 188-F:8 to read as follows:

188-F:8 Presidents of the Regional Community-Technical Institute and Colleges. The commissioner shall nominate, subject to ~~[approval]~~ **confirmation** by the board of trustees, a president of each regional institution who shall ~~[be confirmed by the governor and council]~~ **report to the commissioner.** Presidents shall be qualified by education and experience and shall serve at the pleasure of the board of trustees. ~~[The salary of the presidents shall be established by RSA 94:1-a.]~~ **The board of trustees shall establish the salary for each president.**

**Senate Finance**  
**March 15, 2005**  
**2005-0619s**  
**08/01**

#### **Amendment to SB 93-FN**

Amend the bill by replacing section 5 with the following:

5 Electricians; Fees. Amend RSA 319-C:6-b to read as follows:

319-C:6-b Fees. The board, **with the approval of the commissioner of safety**, shall establish fees for examination of applicants, for licensure, for renewal, and for late renewal of licenses to practice under this chapter, and for transcribing and transferring records and other services. The fees established by the board shall be sufficient to produce estimated revenues equal to 125 percent of the direct operating expenses of the board for the previous fiscal year. **Fees collected shall be deposited in the fire standards and training and emergency medical services fund, established in RSA 21-P:12-d, and used for the purposes of operating expenses of the electricians' board. Fees collected in excess of actual operating expenses shall be deposited in the general fund as unrestricted revenue.**

**Health and Human Services**  
**March 16, 2005**  
**2005-0699s**  
**05/09**

#### **Amendment to SB 101-FN**

Amend the title of the bill by replacing it with the following:

AN ACT relative to developmentally disabled services for persons under 21 years of age.

Amend the bill by replacing section 1 with the following:

1 New Section; Services for Persons Under 21 Years of Age. Amend RSA 171-A by inserting after section 12 the following new section:

171-A:12-a Services for Persons Under 21 Years of Age. Any person under 21 years of age, who has a developmental disability, as defined under RSA 171-A:2, V, as determined by the area agency in accordance with RSA 171-A:6, II and III, shall have the same right as a person 21 years of age or older to receive services, in the least restrictive environment, pursuant to an individual service agreement under RSA 171-A:12. Under no circumstances shall the department or area agency be responsible for special education services under RSA 186-C.

**2005-0699s**

#### AMENDED ANALYSIS

This bill clarifies that a person under 21 years of age who has a developmental disability shall have the same right to services as a person 21 years of age or older.

The bill also makes a technical correction to existing law by removing a misplaced subdivision heading relative to "restraint and seclusion" and inserting it in the appropriate statutory section.

#### **Environment and Wildlife**

**March 17, 2005**

**2005-0716s**

**06/01**

#### **Amendment to SB 103-FN-A-LOCAL**

Amend the title of the bill by replacing it with the following:

AN ACT relative to the dam maintenance fund.

Amend the bill by replacing all after the enacting clause with the following:

1 Energy Efficiency Program; Dam Maintenance Fund. Amend 2001, 29:14 as amended by 2002, 268:6 to read as follows:

29:14 Energy Efficiency Program; Efficient Renewable Energy Programs; ***Dam Maintenance Fund.***

I. The public utilities commission shall phase-in, as quickly as can be effectively administered by Public Service Company of New Hampshire, an energy efficiency program for Public Service Company of New Hampshire that is funded at a rate of \$0.0018 per kilowatt-hour to be allocated from the system benefits charge. The public utilities commission shall not decrease the amount of the system benefits charge allocated to low-income customers due to passage of this act. ***The amount of \$500,000 shall be allocated annually to the dam maintenance fund, established in RSA 482:55, from the portion of system benefits charge used for energy efficiency program. Said sum is hereby appropriated to the department of environmental services for the purpose of dam maintenance. This appropriation shall be nonlapsing.***

II. Any restructured utility under RSA 374-F may, at its discretion, propose efficient renewable energy programs that would yield results similar to cost-effective energy efficiency measures and promote the benefits recognized in RSA 374-F:3, IX, and the public utilities commission should give due consideration to such programs. Such programs could be funded from a portion of the system benefits charge currently dedicated to energy efficiency programs.

2 Effective Date. This act shall take effect July 1, 2005.

**2005-0716s**

#### AMENDED ANALYSIS

This bill allocates \$500,000 from the energy efficiency program for the dam maintenance fund.

#### **Health and Human Services**

**March 16, 2005**

**2005-0674s**

**01/10**

#### **Amendment to SB 110-FN-A**

Amend the bill by replacing sections 1-2 with the following:

1 Statement of Purpose. The general court recognizes that New Hampshire's lower-income uninsured residents pay too much for prescription medication. The general court recognizes that it is difficult or im-

possible for lower-income residents who do not have insurance to pay for medications and that this results in poorer health, higher medical costs, and increased reliance on medicaid. Therefore, to reduce current and future medicaid expenditures and improve the health of New Hampshire's population, the general court hereby creates the New Hampshire Rx plus program which will allow lower-income uninsured persons the opportunity to buy prescription drugs at discount prices.

2 New Chapter; New Hampshire Rx Plus Program for Prescription Drugs. Amend RSA by inserting after chapter 161-J the following new chapter:

CHAPTER 161-K  
NEW HAMPSHIRE RX PLUS PROGRAM

161-K:1 Definitions. In this chapter:

I. "Commissioner" means the commissioner of the department of health and human services.

II. "Department" means the department of health and human services.

161-K:2 New Hampshire Rx Plus Program Established. The department shall establish the New Hampshire Rx plus program for prescription drugs. The New Hampshire Rx plus program shall be available to individuals and families with incomes of not more than 350 percent of the federal poverty level that lack insurance coverage for prescription medications or that have reached the limits of their prescription medication insurance coverage. Benefits shall include the right to purchase prescription medications included on the medicaid preferred drug list from participating pharmacies at average wholesale prices less 10 percent. The department shall negotiate net prescription medication prices and pharmacy discounts for Rx plus beneficiaries. Rx plus discount prices shall be established and periodically adjusted by the department for each medication on the medicaid preferred drug list. Discount prices shall be based on negotiated pharmacy discounts, mandatory medicaid level rebates, and supplemental rebates on purchases by Rx plus beneficiaries less dispensing fees and the department's administrative costs relating to Rx plus.

161-K:3 Rx Plus Fund Established. There is hereby established in the office of the state treasurer a fund to be known as the Rx plus fund. All payments of discounts received by the department as a result of purchases by Rx plus beneficiaries, appropriations to the fund, and interest on the fund shall be deposited in the fund. Moneys in this fund shall be nonlapsing and continually appropriated to the department and may be expended on administrative costs, including contracted services, and reimbursement for pharmacist dispensing fees relating to the Rx plus program and to lower the discount prices available to Rx plus beneficiaries. The department may also reserve moneys in the fund to limit fluctuations in discount prices.

161-K:4 Contracts. The department may enter into contracts relating to this chapter, including contracts relating to program outreach, eligibility determinations, including self-declaration of income as a cost-saving measure, administration, and price and discount negotiations, and recovery. No such contracts shall permit a contractor to receive compensation or other benefit from any pharmaceutical industry entity unless the terms of such compensation or benefits and potential conflicts of interest are disclosed to the department. Such contracts shall guarantee patient confidentiality as to any records shared between the department, contractors, drug industry entities, and pharmacies.

161-K:5 Rulemaking. The commissioner shall adopt rules, pursuant to RSA 541-A, relative to:

I. The application process.

II. Rx plus discount prices pursuant to RSA 161-K:2.

III. The administration of the Rx plus fund established in RSA 161-K:3.

IV. The contracting process, including confidentiality procedures, under RSA 161-K:4.

**Banks and Insurance**

**March 15, 2005**

**2005-0641s**

**01/05**

**Amendment to SB 112-FN**

Amend the title of the bill by replacing it with the following:

AN ACT establishing a committee to study viatical settlements.

Amend the bill by replacing all after the enacting clause with the following:

1 Committee Established. There is established a committee to study viatical settlements between a life insurance provider and a policy owner.

2 Membership and Compensation.

I. The members of the committee shall be as follows:

(a) Three members of the senate, appointed by the president of the senate.

(b) Three members of the house of representatives, appointed by the speaker of the house of representatives.

II. Members of the committee shall receive mileage at the legislative rate when attending to the duties of the committee.

3 Duties. The committee shall study viatical settlements between a life insurance provider and a policy owner.

4 Chairperson; First Meeting. The members of the study committee shall elect a chairperson from among the members. The first meeting of the committee shall be called by the first-named senate member. The first meeting of the committee shall be held within 45 days of the effective date of this section.

5 Report. The committee shall report its findings and any recommendations for proposed legislation to the president of the senate, the speaker of the house of representatives, the senate clerk, the house clerk, the governor, and the state library on or before November 1, 2005.

6 Effective Date. This act shall take effect upon its passage.

**2005-0641s**

#### AMENDED ANALYSIS

This bill establishes a committee to study viatical settlements between a life insurance provider and a policy owner.

**Public and Municipal Affairs**

**March 16, 2005**

**2005-0676s**

**10/05**

#### Amendment to SB 124

Amend RSA 331-A:10, II(g) as inserted by section 8 of the bill by replacing it with the following:

***(g) Submits evidence acceptable to the commission of at least 6 separate real estate transactions in which the applicant was actively involved and was compensated or proves to the commission that the applicant has equivalent experience; and***

Amend RSA 331-A:16, IV(a) as inserted by section 11 of the bill by replacing it with the following:

(a) All advertisements by an associate broker or salesperson shall include ***the associate broker's or salesperson's legal name or reasonable derivative thereof and the regular business name of the firm or the principal broker's name when licensed under an individual principal broker license. The firm or principal broker's name, within the advertisement, shall be clearly identifiable.*** This requirement shall apply to all categories of advertising including all publications, radio or television broadcasts, all electronic media including electronic mail and the Internet, business stationery, business and legal forms and documents, and signs and billboards.

Amend RSA 331-A:25-d, I as inserted by section 18 of the bill by replacing it with the following:

I. A licensee may act as a disclosed dual agent only with the written consent of all parties ~~[involved in the real estate transaction]~~ ***to the anticipated transaction at the time in which a dual agency relationship occurs, but no later than the preparation of a written offer for sale or lease.***

Amend RSA 331-A:26, XII as inserted by section 19 of the bill by replacing it with the following:

XII. Acting for more than one party in a transaction without ~~[the knowledge]~~ ***making full disclosure*** and ***obtaining written*** consent ~~[in writing]~~ of all parties ~~[for whom the licensee acts, and without first~~

making full disclosure of all the facts to all parties interested in the transaction] ***to the anticipated transaction at the time in which a dual agency relationship occurs, but no later than the preparation of a written offer for sale or lease.***

Amend the bill by deleting section 4 and renumbering the original sections 5-23 to read as 4-22, respectively.

## **Environment and Wildlife**

**March 17, 2005**

**2005-0723s**

**08/03**

### **Amendment to SB 128-FN**

Amend the bill by replacing all after the enacting clause with the following:

1 Integrated Power Plant Strategy. Amend RSA 125-O:3, I and II to read as follows:

I. The department shall implement ~~[an]~~ ***one or more*** integrated, multi-pollutant ~~[strategy]~~ ***strategies*** to reduce air emissions from affected sources.

II. The integrated, multi-pollutant strategy shall be implemented in a market-based fashion that allows trading and banking of emission reductions to comply with the overall statewide annual emission caps established under RSA 125-O:3, III(a), (b), and (d). Allowances, up to the amount of these caps, shall be allocated to each affected source based on the output of each affected source. The department shall make publicly available all allocations prior to the effective date of such allocations. ***This paragraph shall not apply to mercury emissions under RSA 125-O:3, III(c).***

2 Emissions Reduction. RSA 125-O:3, III(c)-(d) are repealed and reenacted to read as follows:

(c) Total mercury emissions from all affected sources burning coal as a fuel, of 50 pounds per year beginning July 1, 2008, and a reduction to 24 pounds per year beginning July 1, 2010; and

(d) 5,425,866 tons annually applicable to total carbon dioxide (CO<sub>2</sub>) emissions from the affected sources until December 31, 2010. Beginning January 1, 2011, the commissioner shall establish by rule the annual cap for total CO<sub>2</sub> emissions based upon allowances submitted to, and received from, a regional interstate trading and banking program that shall be adopted prior to January 1, 2011.

3 Emissions Reduction. Amend the introductory paragraph of RSA 125-O:4, IV to read as follows:

IV. Compliance with the emission caps established under RSA 125-O:3, III may be demonstrated by making emission reductions at the affected sources, using compliance market-based approaches, or other methods acceptable to the department. ***This paragraph shall not apply to mercury emissions under RSA 125-O:3, III(c).***

4 New Paragraph; Emissions Reduction; Alternative Compliance Methods. Amend RSA 125-O:4 by inserting after paragraph V the following new paragraph:

VI. If affected sources are unable to comply with the emission cap for mercury established under RSA 125-O:3, III(c), the department shall recommend to the general court alternative compliance methods.

5 Emissions Reduction; Powers and Duties of the Commissioner. Amend RSA 125-O:6, I to read as follows:

I. Develop a trading and banking program to provide appropriate compliance flexibility in meeting the emission caps established under RSA 125-O:3, III(a), (b), and (d), and to encourage earlier and greater emissions reductions and the development of new emission control technologies in order to maximize the cost-effectiveness with which the environmental benefits of this chapter are achieved. ***This paragraph shall not apply to mercury emissions under RSA 125-O:3, III(c).***

6 Rulemaking. Amend the introductory paragraph of RSA 125-O:8 to read as follows:

125-O:8 Rulemaking Authority. The commissioner shall adopt rules under RSA 541-A:~~commencing no later than 180 days after the effective date of this section;~~ relative to:

7 New Paragraph; Emission Reduction; Rulemaking. Amend RSA 125-O:8 by inserting after paragraph III the following new paragraph:

IV. The annual cap for total carbon dioxide emissions beginning January 1, 2011, as required by RSA 125-O:3, III(d).

8 Effective Date. This act shall take effect 60 days after its passage.



**Senate Education**  
**March 15, 2005**  
**2005-0650s**  
**04/10**

**Amendment to SB 131-FN**

Amend RSA 193-I as inserted by section 2 of the bill by inserting after RSA 193-I:12 the following new RSA section:

193-I:13 Source of Funds. Except for general funds specifically appropriated for the purpose of this chapter, the commissioner of the department of education shall not expend any general funds or federal funds appropriated to the department of education on the school choice certificate program. Each fiscal year, the commissioner of the department of education shall identify a source of funds sufficient to fund the school choice certificates requested in such fiscal year and shall inform the house and senate education committees of the source of the funding.

Amend the bill by inserting after section 2 the following and renumbering the original section 3 to read as 4:

3 Appropriation. The sum of \$1 for the biennium ending June 30, 2007 is hereby appropriated to the department of education for the purposes set forth in RSA 193-I. The governor is authorized to draw a warrant for said sum out of any money in the treasury not otherwise appropriated.

**2005-0650s**

**AMENDED ANALYSIS**

This bill establishes a school choice certificate program. The bill makes an appropriation of \$1 for the biennium ending June 30, 2007 to the department of education for the school choice certificate program.

**Public and Municipal Affairs**  
**March 16, 2005**  
**2005-0694s**  
**06/04**

**Amendment to SB 143**

Amend the bill by replacing all after section 1 with the following:

2 Open Space Impact Fees; Maximum Fee. RSA 674:21, V(a) is repealed and reenacted to read as follows:

(a) The amount of any open space fee shall be a proportional share of municipal capital improvement costs which is reasonably related to the capital needs created by the development, and to the benefits accruing to the development from the capital improvements financed by the fee. Upgrading of existing facilities and infrastructures, the need for which is not created by new development, shall not be paid for by impact fees. The maximum open space impact fee shall be:

(1) For developments of 50 or fewer housing units, \$250 per unit.

(2) For developments of 51-200 housing units, \$500 per unit.

(3) For developments of more than 200 housing units, \$750 per unit.

(4) For developments which include 10 percent or more of the units as workforce housing units, ½ of the amount applicable under subparagraphs (1), (2), or (3).

3 New Paragraph; Method of Enactment in Cities and Towns Which do not Have a Town Meeting Form of Government; Impact Fee for Public Open Space. Amend RSA 675:2 by inserting after paragraph I the following new paragraph:

I-a. A zoning ordinance, or amendment to a zoning ordinance, that allows the assessment of impact fees for public open space shall be adopted by an affirmative vote of 60 percent of the legal voters present and voting.

4 New Paragraph; Method of Enactment in Towns With a Town Meeting Form of Government and Village Districts; Impact Fee for Public Open Space. Amend RSA 675:3 by inserting after paragraph I the following new paragraph:

I-a. A zoning ordinance, or amendment to a zoning ordinance, that allows the assessment of impact fees for public open space shall be adopted by an affirmative vote of 60 percent of the legal voters present and voting.

5 New Paragraph; Method of Enactment by Petition; Impact Fee for Public Open Space. Amend RSA 675:4 by inserting after paragraph III the following new paragraph:

III-a. A petitioned zoning ordinance, or amendment to a zoning ordinance, that allows the assessment of impact fees for public open space shall be adopted by an affirmative vote of 60 percent of the legal voters present and voting.

6 Towns Which do not Have a Town Meeting Form of Government. Amend the section heading of RSA 675:2 to read as follows:

675:2 Method of Enactment in Cities and Towns [~~Operating Under Town Council~~] **Which do not Have a Town Meeting** Form of Government.

7 Towns Which Have a Town Meeting Form of Government. Amend the section heading of RSA 675:3 to read as follows:

675:3 Method of Enactment in [~~Certain~~] Towns **Which Have a Town Meeting Form of Government** and Village Districts.

8 Method of Enactment in Towns With a Town Meeting Form of Government and Village Districts. Amend RSA 675:3, I to read as follows:

I. Any town [~~not operating under the town council~~] **with a town meeting** form of government, or any village district which is specifically authorized by law to enact a zoning ordinance, shall establish and amend a zoning ordinance, historic district ordinance, or building code upon the affirmative vote by ballot of a majority of the legal voters present and voting on the day of the meeting, as provided in paragraph VII. Any proposed zoning ordinance, as submitted by a planning board or any amendment to an existing zoning ordinance as proposed by a planning board, board of selectmen or village district commission shall be submitted to the voters of a town or village district in the manner prescribed in this section.

9 Effective Date. This act shall take effect 60 days after its passage.

**2005-0694s**

#### AMENDED ANALYSIS

This bill allows a town to adopt a zoning ordinance, or an amendment to a zoning ordinance, that includes impact fees for public open space if the ordinance or amendment receives an affirmative vote of 60 percent of the voters. The bill also establishes maximum impact fees and reduces the maximum impact fee by ½ for developments that include workforce housing units

#### **Transportation and Interstate Cooperation**

**March 17, 2005**

**2005-0703s**

**03/10**

#### **Amendment to SB 145-FN**

Amend RSA 263:6-b, I as inserted by section 1 of the bill by replacing it with the following:

I. In order to advise the director on medical criteria for the reporting and examination of drivers with medical impairments, a medical/vision advisory board is hereby established within the division. The board shall be composed of 3 members appointed by the director. Two of the members of the board shall be licensed physicians and residents of this state, and one member of the board shall be a licensed optometrist and a resident of this state. Of the original appointees, one shall serve for a term of 2 years and 2 shall serve for terms of 4 years. Subsequent appointees shall each serve for a term of 4 years or until their successors are appointed and approved. Any vacancy shall be filled in the same manner as the original appointment for the remainder of the term. The members of the board shall receive no compensation for their services and shall not hire any staff personnel but shall be paid mileage when attending to the duties of the committee at the maximum rate established in the Internal Revenue Code and regulations. After the first full year of operation of the advisory board, the board shall meet no more than 4 times per year.



Amend RSA 263:6-b as inserted by section 1 of the bill by inserting after paragraph II the following new paragraph:

III. The medical/vision advisory board shall:

(a) Create and keep current criteria and science-based guidelines for use by division hearing examiners in making licensing determinations.

(b) Develop and promote assessment techniques available to healthcare providers to assist patients in driving-related issues.

(c) Assist the division in developing policy regarding medical conditions' effects on driving.

(d) Serve as liaison to the healthcare community in promoting best medical practices related to driving safely.

**Health and Human Services**

**March 16, 2005**

**2005-0700s**

**05/09**

#### **Amendment to SB 147-FN-LOCAL**

Amend the title of the bill by replacing it with the following:

AN ACT relative to eligibility for local assistance.

Amend the bill by replacing all after the enacting clause with the following:

1 Aid to Assisted Persons; Residency Required. Amend RSA 165:1, I to read as follows:

I. Whenever a person in any town is poor and unable to support himself *or herself*, ~~[he]~~ **the person** shall be relieved and maintained by the overseers of public welfare of such town, whether or not ~~[he]~~ **the person** has residence there. For the purposes of this chapter the term "residence" shall have the same definition as in RSA 21:6-a.

2 Assisted Person Defined; Local Responsibility; Reimbursement from Town of Prior Residence Permitted. Amend RSA 165:1-a to read as follows:

165:1-a Assisted Person Defined; Local Responsibility. Any person in a town or city who is poor and unable to support himself *or herself* shall be known as a town or city assisted person, and shall be relieved and maintained at the expense of the town or city of residence. ***If the person has been a resident of the town or city for less than 90 days, the town or city may seek reimbursement for such assistance from the person's town or city of prior residence.***

3 Aid to Assisted Persons; Nonresidents; Temporary Assistance to Return to Place of Residence. Amend RSA 165:1-c to read as follows:

165:1-c Nonresidents. Any person, poor and unable to support himself *or herself*, who is temporarily in a town or city which is not his *or her* residence, and who does not intend to make it his *or her* residence, shall be provided such temporary assistance as is reasonable and necessary by such town or city ~~[-Such town or city may, if requested, cause]~~ **so that** such person ~~[to]~~ **may** be returned to his *or her place of* residence.

4 Effective Date. This act shall take effect January 1, 2006.

**2005-0700s**

#### **AMENDED ANALYSIS**

This bill provides that if a person has been a resident of a town for less than 90 days and seeks local assistance, the town may seek reimbursement for such assistance from the person's town of prior residence.

**Internal Affairs**

**March 16, 2005**

**2005-0696s**

**05/09**

#### **Amendment to SB 206-FN**

Amend the bill by replacing all after the enacting clause with the following:

1 Code of Ethics; Definition of Public Official; Elected Members Added. Amend RSA 21-G:21, V to read as follows:

V. "Public official" means ***a member of the executive branch elected by the public or the general court, or*** a commissioned, unclassified, or nonclassified executive branch employee~~[-but shall not include any commissioned, unclassified, or nonclassified employee elected by the legislature].~~

2 Executive Ethics Commission Established. RSA 21-G:29 is repealed and reenacted to read as follows:

21-G:29 Commission Established; Jurisdiction; Membership.

I. There is hereby established an executive ethics commission to develop standards for executive ethics and resolve, through procedures established under RSA 21-G:32, issues, questions, or complaints involving public employees, other than classified employees, and public officials of the executive branch.

II. The jurisdiction of the commission shall consist of matters arising under the executive branch code of ethics, RSA 21-G:21-28 and rules or guidelines adopted thereunder.

III. The commission shall consist of the following members, none of whom shall be a public official or public employee within the meaning of this chapter and at least one of whom shall be an attorney who is a member of the New Hampshire bar:

(a) Four public members, appointed by the governor, no more than 2 of whom shall be members of the same political party.

(b) Two retired members of the judiciary, appointed by the chief justice of the supreme court.

(c) One public member, appointed by the executive council.

IV. Persons appointed to the commission shall be qualified by excellent personal reputation and by education or experience in public service, in resolving ethical issues facing persons in public service, or in the law.

V. Commission members shall serve terms of 3 years and until their successors are appointed and qualified. However, initially the governor and the chief justice of the supreme court shall each appoint a member for a one-year term, and the governor and executive council shall each appoint a member for a 2-year term. Vacancies shall be filled for the remainder of the unexpired term. Initial appointments to the commission shall be made no later than 90 days after the effective date of this section.

VI. The governor shall designate one of the governor's appointees to convene the first meeting, which shall take place no later than 30 days after a majority of the membership has been appointed.

VII. Commission members shall receive no compensation, except that commission members shall receive mileage at the state employee rate.

21-G:30 Duties.

I. The commission shall be authorized to:

(a) Issue guidelines to elucidate proper and appropriate conduct for individuals relating to the performance of their duties as public officials and public employees other than classified employees. Such guidelines shall be consistent with statute.

(b) Issue interpretative rulings explaining and clarifying any law, guideline, rule, or regulation within the jurisdiction of the commission.

(c) Render an advisory opinion, in writing within a reasonable time, in response to a written request by a public official or public employee other than a classified employee, concerning the application of any law, guideline, rule, or regulation within the commission's jurisdiction to a specific factual situation pertinent to the conduct or proposed conduct of the person seeking the advisory opinion. Any advisory opinion concerning any person subject to the provisions of this subdivision who acted in reliance thereon, shall be binding upon the commission, and it shall be an absolute defense in any complaint brought under this subdivision that the person complained against acted in reliance upon such advisory opinion.

(d) Receive sworn complaints, investigate allegations of violations of this subdivision or guidelines adopted thereunder by public officials or public employees other than classified employees, and make appropriate findings of fact and conclusions with respect to such conduct.

(e) Investigate any unauthorized disclosure of information by any commission member or assistant and report to the appropriate authority any allegation which it finds to be substantiated.

II. All actions of the commission shall require an affirmative vote of 4 or more members of the commission before becoming effective.

21-G:31 Complaints; Procedure.

I. Each complaint shall be submitted in writing and signed under oath by the complainant. The sworn complaint shall be filed confidentially with the commission and shall contain the name and address of the complainant. The public official or public employee complained against shall be furnished with a copy of the complaint and a copy shall be sent to each member of the commission for review. The commission may initiate a complaint on its own motion against any individual the commission has reason to believe has violated this subdivision or guidelines adopted thereunder. The commission shall promptly examine each sworn complaint and:

(a) Upon first examination, if by a two-thirds affirmative vote it determines that a complaint is frivolous, scurrilous, retaliatory in nature, or plainly not within the commission's jurisdiction, the commission may summarily discharge the complaint without further meeting or proceeding. The commission shall notify the respondent and complainant in writing of its action.

(b) For any complaint not summarily discharged, the commission shall conduct an initial review to ascertain whether the commission has jurisdiction to consider the complaint or whether the complaint is without merit or is unfounded. If the commission concludes by a recorded vote that the alleged conduct is not within the commission's jurisdiction, is without merit, or is unfounded, the commission shall dismiss the complaint and shall report such conclusion to the complainant and to the public official or public employee, with an explanation of the basis of such determination.

II. If the commission, by recorded vote, concludes that the complaint is within its jurisdiction and may have merit, the commission may proceed to conduct a preliminary investigation. Upon completion of its preliminary investigation, the commission shall conclude by recorded vote that:

(a) No violation occurred and no further action is appropriate;

(b) The violation is inadvertent, technical, or of a de minimis nature and shall be addressed by informal methods; or

(c) There are reasonable grounds to believe a violation occurred and formal proceedings shall be instituted to inquire further into the complaint. In that event, the commission shall issue a formal statement of charges and proceed to a hearing on the complaint.

III. Upon completion of the hearing, the commission shall conclude by recorded vote that:

(a) No violation occurred and no further action is appropriate;

(b) No action is appropriate because there is not clear and convincing evidence that a violation occurred;

(c) Based upon clear and convincing evidence, a violation occurred, but such violation does not justify formal disciplinary action and shall be resolved by informal methods; or

(d) Based upon clear and convincing evidence, a violation occurred, and the violation was of a serious nature so as to warrant formal disciplinary action. In the case of a public employee other than a classified employee, the commission may recommend disciplinary action by the employee's supervisor, including but not limited to termination of employment. In the case of a finding of violation by a public official, the commission may recommend disciplinary action by the appropriate body, including but not limited to removal from office under RSA 4:1, or, in the case of the governor, executive council member, or other officer of the state, impeachment or other appropriate action pursuant to part II, article 38 of the New Hampshire constitution. In addition to any recommendation for disciplinary action under this subparagraph, the commission may refer the case to the department of justice for criminal prosecution under RSA 21-G:33.

IV. Any person who knowingly or willfully swears falsely to a sworn complaint does so under penalty of perjury, and the commission may refer any such case to the department of justice for prosecution.

V. Except as otherwise provided in this paragraph and notwithstanding any other provision of law, all proceedings, information, communications, materials, papers, files, and transcripts, written or oral, received or developed by the commission in the course of its work, shall be confidential. The commission shall first examine any sworn complaint and shall conduct its initial review and preliminary investigation of complaints

in a confidential manner, unless otherwise requested by the public official or public employee complained against. The commission shall conduct formal proceedings, other than its deliberations, in public session. The commission's deliberations on complaints shall be conducted in nonpublic session. Upon completion of the preliminary investigation conducted under paragraph II, and a vote taken under subparagraph II(a) or (b), or at the conclusion of formal proceedings under paragraph III, the commission shall make available for public inspection all records, other than its work product and internal memoranda relating to the complaint.

VI. In proceedings under this subdivision, the commission shall have the power to issue subpoenas and administer oaths.

VII. Any member of the commission who is directly or indirectly involved in any complaint before the commission shall not participate in any proceedings regarding the complaint. In the event that recusals under this paragraph reduce the number of participating members to fewer than 4, the remaining participating members shall designate an alternate or alternates sufficient to increase the commission to 4 members, to serve on the commission for that case only.

21-G:32 Rules; Procedures and Standards. The commission shall adopt, publish, and make available to the public rules governing its procedures, as well as guidelines referred to in RSA 21-G:30, I, consistent with the procedures set forth in RSA 541-A.

#### 21-G:33 Penalty.

I. Any person who knowingly or willfully violates RSA 21-G:21-28 or makes unauthorized disclosure of confidential matters or materials contrary to RSA 21-G:31, or interferes with or obstructs lawful activities of the commission, shall be guilty of a misdemeanor and may be subject to disciplinary action as provided in RSA 21-G:31, III(d) and other applicable law.

II. In the case of any person convicted under this section, the court may order restitution.

21-G:34 Commission Administration and Staff. The commission shall be administratively attached to the department of justice, which shall provide appropriate administrative and investigative staff and legal counsel in support of the commission's activities, at the commission's request. Files and records of the commission shall be protected against access other than by members of the commission and other persons specifically authorized by the commission.

#### 3 Supplemental State Agency Ethical Codes. Amend RSA 21-G:27 to read as follows:

21-G:27 Supplemental State Agency Ethical Codes. In addition to this code, each agency may promulgate a supplemental ethics code to address issues specific to that agency. In the event of a conflict~~[-the provisions of this code shall supersede the agency code]~~ **with the provisions of this code, a stricter provision of an agency code shall govern.** To the extent that this code or an ethics code adopted by an agency shall apply to classified employees, this code, or an agency code, shall be interpreted to be consistent with the provisions of the classified employees' collective bargaining agreement **and the state personnel rules.**

#### 4 Acceptance and Giving of Gifts Prohibited. Amend RSA 21-G:25 to read as follows:

21-G:25 Acceptance and Giving of Gifts. ~~[Any]~~ **No** public employee, public official, and any public employee's or public official's spouse or dependent ~~[who gives, solicits, accepts, or agrees to accept a gift from]~~ **shall give a gift to, or solicit, accept, or agree to accept a gift from,** a person who is subject to or likely to become subject to or interested in any matter or action pending before or contemplated by the public employee or official or by the governmental body with which that employee or official is affiliated ~~[shall disclose the gift in the statement of financial disclosure filed under RSA 21-G:28]~~. Nothing in this section shall be construed to prohibit gifts made to the state of New Hampshire and accepted in accordance with the law.

#### 5 Duration of Restriction on Employment. Amend RSA 21-G:26 to read as follows:

21-G:26 Employment Restrictions. For ~~[6]~~ **12** months after leaving office or employment with the state, no public official shall appear as a lobbyist to promote or oppose directly any specific legislation pending or proposed before the general court on behalf of any matter over which that official had personal and direct responsibility while in state government.

#### 6 Financial Disclosure. Amend RSA 21-G:28 to read as follows:

##### 21-G:28 Financial Disclosure.

I.(a) To ensure that the performance of official duties does not give rise to a conflict of interest, the following ~~[public officials]~~ **persons** shall file with the secretary of state a statement of financial disclosure in such form as the secretary of state may prescribe:

(1) All agency heads; and

(2) Any public official designated, due to the responsibilities of the position, by the agency head.

**(3) Any person not employed by the state who is acting on behalf of the governor or an agency while engaged in state business.**

(b) ~~[The]~~ **Each** agency head shall file with the secretary of state an organizational chart identifying the names, titles, and position numbers of ~~[officials]~~ **persons** required to file a statement of financial disclosure.

**(c) The governor shall file with the secretary of state an organizational chart identifying the names and titles of all persons who are acting on behalf of the governor and who are required to file a statement of financial disclosure.**

II. The initial statements of financial disclosure and organizational charts required under this section shall be filed by July 1, 2005. Thereafter, revised statements of financial disclosure and organizational charts shall be filed immediately upon any change of status. ~~[New agency heads shall]~~ **Any person required under this section to** file a statement of financial disclosure **shall do so** no later than the first day of service.

III. Statements of financial disclosure and organizational charts filed with the secretary of state shall be public documents.

7 Executive Order Superseded. The provisions of this act and RSA 21-G:21-28 supersede and replace the provisions of Executive Order Number 98-1, dated May 19, 1998.

8 Effective Date. This act shall take effect July 1, 2005.

**2005-0696s**

#### AMENDED ANALYSIS

This bill:

I. Expands the state code of ethics to members of the executive branch elected by the public or the general court.

II. Establishes an executive ethics commission to address ethics complaints involving public officials and public employees, other than classified employees.

III. Prohibits a public employee, public official, and his or her spouse or dependent from accepting or giving a gift to a person who is subject to or interested in any matter or action before the public employee or public official.

IV. Extends the restriction on lobbying by former public officials from 6 months to 12 months after leaving office.

V. Requires a person who is not employed by the state but who is acting on behalf of the governor or an agency and engaged in state business to file a financial disclosure statement with the secretary of state.

#### **Banks and Insurance**

**March 15, 2005**

**2005-0637s**

**06/09**

#### **Amendment to SB 209-FN**

Amend RSA 399-G:1, I(a) as inserted by section 1 of the bill by replacing it with the following:

(a) A business location within this state of a person required to be licensed under this chapter that is identified by any means to the public as a location at which a money transmitter or check casher conducts business and an entity designated by the money transmitter licensee to engage in the business of money transmission on behalf of the money transmitter licensee.



Amend RSA 399-G:1, III as inserted by section 1 of the bill by replacing it with the following:

III. "Check cashing" means receiving compensation for accepting payment instruments, other than traveler's checks, in exchange for money or monetary value delivered to the presenter of the instrument at the time and place of presentation without any agreement specifying when the payment instrument will be submitted for collection.

Amend RSA 399-G:2, V as inserted by section 1 of the bill by replacing it with the following:

V. Any license or registration fee required by this chapter shall be paid before a license or registration may become effective.

Amend RSA 399-G:5, II as inserted by section 1 of the bill by replacing it with the following:

II.(a) The license issued for the licensee's principal place of business shall be referred to as a "principal office license." Each additional authorization to conduct business issued for money transmission or check cashing activity occurring in a location in this state that is separate from the licensee's principal place of business shall be referred to as a "branch office registration." If the applicant desires to transmit money or cash checks in more than one location, the commissioner, upon favorable action on the applicant's principal office license, shall issue a branch office registration for each location where the business of money transmission or check cashing is to be conducted.

(b) Each license application shall be accompanied by a nonrefundable application fee of \$500 for each principal office and \$25 for each branch office registration, up to a maximum annual fee of \$4,000. Sums collected under this chapter shall be payable to the state treasurer as restricted revenue and credited to the appropriation for the commissioner, consumer credit administration division.

(c) Each applicant shall submit detailed financial information sufficient for the commissioner to determine the applicant's ability to conduct the business of a money transmitter or a check casher with financial integrity. The application shall include a statement of net worth in all cases and an applicant shall demonstrate and maintain a positive net worth computed in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Net worth statements provided in connection with a license application under this section shall be subject to review and verification during the course of any examination or investigation conducted under the authority of RSA 399-G:13. Each money transmitter applicant shall post a continuous surety bond in the amount of \$100,000. Surety bonds shall include a provision requiring the surety to give written notice to the commissioner 20 days in advance of the cancellation or termination of the bond. Every bond shall provide that no recovery may be made against the bond unless the state makes a claim for recovery or the person brings suit naming the principal within 6 years after the act upon which the recovery or suit is based. The obligations of the surety shall survive the bankruptcy, insolvency, liquidation, or reorganization of the licensee, including, without limitation, any bankruptcy, insolvency, liquidation, or reorganization commenced by or against the licensee under any applicable state or federal law, including the United States Bankruptcy Code.

Amend the section heading of RSA 399-G:6 as inserted by section 1 of the bill by replacing it with the following:

399-G:6 License and Registration Grant.

Amend RSA 399-G:6, I and II as inserted by section 1 of the bill by replacing it with the following:

I. If the commissioner determines that the applicant meets the requirements of this chapter, then the commissioner shall issue a license or licenses permitting the applicant to engage in the business of money transmission or check cashing in accordance with the laws of this state. Licensees shall be responsible for the supervision of their employees and agent. Principal office licensees shall be responsible for supervision of their branch offices.

II. Each license issued under the provisions of this chapter shall state the name and address of the principal office of the licensee. Each registration issued under the provisions of this chapter shall state the name and address of the branch office location for which that registration is issued.

Amend RSA 399-G:6, V as inserted by section 1 of the bill by replacing it with the following:

V. A license or registration issued under this chapter shall not be transferable or assignable between persons without obtaining the approval of the commissioner before the assignment or transfer.

Amend RSA 399-G:8 as inserted by section 1 of the bill by replacing it with the following:

399-G:8 License or Registration Term; Renewal.

I. Each license or registration shall remain in force until it has been surrendered, revoked, or suspended, or expires in accordance with the provisions of this chapter. Each license or registration shall expire on December 31 of each calendar year.

II. If a person holds a valid license or registration under this section and is in compliance with this chapter and the rules thereunder, such licensee may renew the license or registration by paying the required fee to the banking department on or before December 1 for the ensuing year that begins on January 1. Failure to renew the license or registration shall result in the license or registration terminating on December 31.

III. A renewal fee of \$500 for the principal office license and \$25 for each branch office registration, up to a maximum annual fee of \$4,000, shall be submitted with the application for license renewal.

IV. No application for renewal shall be denied without reasonable cause and the right of appeal pursuant to RSA 541-A and RSA 541.

Amend RSA 399-G:9 as inserted by section 1 of the bill by replacing it with the following:

399-G:9 License Posting. It shall be unlawful to engage in the business of money transmission or check cashing without a conspicuously posted license in the licensee's principal place of business within this state or a conspicuously posted registration in each of the licensee's branch offices within this state.

Amend RSA 399-G:10, I as inserted by section 1 of the bill by replacing it with the following:

I. No licensee shall conduct the business of a money transmitter or a check casher under a trade or other name that is different from the name stated in its principal office license without immediately notifying the commissioner, who shall then amend the license and any registrations accordingly.

Amend RSA 399-G:10, III as inserted by section 1 of the bill by replacing it with the following:

III. Licensees shall provide written notice to the department of any proposed change in location or proposed closing of any office no later than 10 business days prior to the effective date of such change of location or closing. In the case of an emergency, as determined by the commissioner, a licensee may close a registered branch office and provide notice of the closure to the department within 2 business days. Failure to comply with the provisions of this paragraph shall be sufficient cause for license revocation or denial of license renewal applications.

Amend RSA 399-G:11, I as inserted by section 1 of the bill by replacing it with the following:

I.(a) A licensee who ceases to engage in the business of a money transmitter or check casher at any time during a license year for any cause, including but not limited to bankruptcy, license revocation, or voluntary dissolution, shall surrender such license and office registrations, if any, in person or by registered or certified mail to the commissioner within 15 calendar days of such cessation of business, and shall cause to be published in a newspaper of general circulation in the licensee's market area a notice to such effect. The commissioner shall adopt rules, in accordance with RSA 541-A, relative to such notice.

(b) Withdrawal of the surrendered license and office registrations, if any, shall become effective 30 days after receipt by the commissioner or within such shorter period of time as the commissioner may determine, unless a revocation or suspension proceeding is pending when the license is surrendered or a proceeding to revoke or suspend or to impose conditions upon the withdrawal is instituted within 30 days after the license is surrendered. If a proceeding is pending or instituted, withdrawal becomes effective at such time and upon such conditions as the commissioner by order determines. The commissioner may nevertheless institute a revocation or suspension proceeding under RSA 399-G:19 within one year after withdrawal became effective and may enter a revocation or suspension order as of the last date on which the license was effective.

Amend RSA 399-G:17 as inserted by section 1 of the bill by replacing it with the following:

399-G:17 Advertising. No licensee or other person shall advertise, print, display, publish, distribute, or broadcast or permit to be advertised, printed, displayed, published, distributed, or broadcast in any manner whatsoever any statement or representation with regard to the rates, terms, or conditions for check cashing or money transmission under the provisions of this chapter which is false, misleading, or deceptive.

Amend RSA 399-G:19, I(g) as inserted by section 1 of the bill by replacing it with the following:

(g) Is the subject of an order entered within the past 5 years by this state, any other state, or a federal regulator denying, suspending, or revoking a money transmission or check cashing license or registration.



Amend RSA 399-G:21, II(c) as inserted by section 1 of the bill by replacing it with the following:

(c) The application form for licenses and registrations required under RSA 399-G:5.

Amend RSA 399-G:21, II(f) as inserted by section 1 of the bill by replacing it with the following:

(f) The form of license and registration issued under RSA 399-G:6.

Amend RSA 399-G as inserted by section 1 of the bill by inserting after section 23 the following new section:

399-G:24 Applicability. Prior law exclusively governs all suits, actions, prosecutions or proceedings which are pending or may be initiated on the basis of facts or circumstances occurring before January 1, 2006, except that no civil suit or action may be maintained to enforce any liability under prior law unless brought within any period of limitation which applied when the cause of action accrued and in any event within 3 years after January 1, 2006.

## **Energy and Economic Development**

**March 15, 2005**

**2005-0647s**

**08/01**

### **Amendment to SB 215-FN**

Amend the title of the bill by replacing it with the following:

AN ACT creating a committee to study banning the incineration of construction and demolition debris.

Amend the bill by replacing all after the enacting clause with the following:

1 Committee Established. There is established a committee to study banning the incineration of construction and demolition debris.

2 Membership and Compensation.

I. The members of the committee shall be as follows:

(a) Two members of the senate, appointed by the president of the senate.

(b) Three members of the house of representatives, appointed by the speaker of the house of representatives.

II. Members of the committee shall receive mileage at the legislative rate when attending to the duties of the committee.

3 Duties. The committee shall study banning the incineration of construction and demolition debris.

4 Chairperson; Quorum. The members of the study committee shall elect a chairperson from among the members. The first meeting of the committee shall be called by the first-named senate member. The first meeting of the committee shall be held within 45 days of the effective date of this section. Four members of the committee shall constitute a quorum.

5 Report. The committee shall report its findings and any recommendations for proposed legislation to the president of the senate, the speaker of the house of representatives, the senate clerk, the house clerk, the governor, and the state library on or before November 1, 2006.

6 Effective Date. This act shall take effect upon its passage.

**2005-0647s**

### **AMENDED ANALYSIS**

This bill creates a committee to study banning the incineration of construction and demolition debris.

## **Banks and Insurance**

**March 15, 2005**

**2005-0636s**

**06/09**

### **Amendment to SB 223-FN**

Amend RSA 397-A:1, III as inserted by section 1 of the bill by replacing it with the following:

III. "Borrower" means a homeowner or purchaser of a home who obtains funds from another by the signing of a note and mortgage deed on a dwelling. The term shall include any legal successor to the borrower's rights or obligations.

Amend RSA 397-A:1 as inserted by section 1 of the bill by inserting after paragraph XIII the following new paragraph and renumbering paragraphs XIV – XXIII to read as XV - XXIV:

XIV. “Mortgage loan” means a first or second mortgage loan which is secured in whole or in part by a mortgage upon any interest in real property used as a dwelling with accommodations for not more than 4 families.

Amend RSA 397-A:2, I as inserted by section 2 of the bill by replacing it with the following:

I. This chapter shall provide for the [banking] department’s regulation of persons that engage in the business of making or brokering [first] mortgage loans secured by real property located in the state of New Hampshire, which is or shall be occupied in whole or in part as a [primary domicile or] place of residence by the borrower and which consists of not more than 4 living units.

Amend RSA 397-A:3 as inserted by section 3 of the bill by replacing it with the following:

397-A:3 License Required. Any person not exempt under RSA 397-A:4 that, in its own name or on behalf of other persons, engages in the business of making or brokering [first] mortgage loans secured by real property located in this state shall be required to obtain a license from the [banking] department. ***Persons licensed as mortgage bankers may engage in the mortgage broker business without obtaining a separate license.***

Amend the bill by replacing section 6 with the following:

6 License Application; Requirements; Investigation. RSA 397-A:5, I-IV is repealed and reenacted to read as follows:

I. To be considered for licensing, each person shall complete and file with the [banking] department one verified application prescribed by the commissioner. At a minimum, the application shall state the primary business address of the applicant, the address of its principal office and all branch offices located or to be located within the state, and a list of the principals of the applicant. Each principal shall authorize the commissioner to conduct a background check. The applicant shall submit any other information that the commissioner may require including, but not limited to, the applicant’s form and place of organization, the applicant’s proposed method of doing business, the qualifications and business history of the applicant and its principals, and the applicant’s financial condition and history. The applicant shall disclose whether the applicant or any of its principals has ever been issued or been the subject of an injunction or administrative order, has ever been convicted of a misdemeanor involving the lending industry or any aspect of the lending business or has ever been convicted of any felony.

II.(a) Unless the applicant is a publicly traded corporation, the department shall complete a background investigation and criminal history records check on the applicant’s principals and any person in a similar position or performing similar functions. If the applicant is a subsidiary, the department shall complete a background investigation and criminal history records check on the principals of each equity owner of 10 percent or more of the applicant unless such equity owner is a publicly traded corporation.

(b) The persons described in subparagraph II(a) shall submit to the department a notarized criminal history records release form, as provided by the New Hampshire division of state police, which authorizes the release of the person’s criminal records, if any. The person shall submit with the release form a complete set of fingerprints taken by a qualified law enforcement agency or an authorized employee of the banking department. In the event that the first set of fingerprints is invalid due to insufficient pattern, a second set of fingerprints is necessary in order to complete the criminal history records check. If, after 2 attempts, a set of fingerprints is invalid due to insufficient pattern, the department may, in lieu of the criminal history records check, accept police clearances from every city, town, or county where the person has lived during the past 5 years.

(c) The department shall submit the criminal history records release form to the New Hampshire division of state police which shall conduct a criminal history records check through its records and through the Federal Bureau of Investigation. Upon completion of the background investigation, the division of state police shall release copies of the criminal conviction records to the department. The department shall maintain the confidentiality of all criminal history records information received pursuant to this paragraph.

(d) The department may require the applicant or licensee to pay the actual costs of each background investigation and criminal history records check.

III.(a) The license issued for the licensee's principal place of business shall be referred to as a "principal office license." Each additional license issued for mortgage lending or brokering activity occurring in a location in this state that is separate from the licensee's principal place of business shall be referred to as a "branch office license." If the applicant or licensee desires to make or broker mortgage loans in more than one location, the commissioner, upon favorable action on the applicant's principal office license, shall issue a branch office license for each location where the business of making or brokering mortgage loans is to be conducted.

(b) Each license application shall be accompanied by a nonrefundable application fee of \$500 for each separate office location to be licensed. Sums collected under this chapter shall be payable to the state treasurer as restricted revenue and credited to the appropriation for the commissioner, consumer credit administration division.

(c) Each applicant shall be required to submit to the department detailed financial information sufficient for the commissioner to determine the applicant's ability to conduct the business of a mortgage banker or a mortgage broker with financial integrity. The application shall include a statement of net worth. An applicant or licensee shall demonstrate and maintain a positive net worth. Net worth statements provided in connection with a license application under this section shall be subject to review and verification during the course of any examination or investigation conducted under the authority of RSA 397-A:12. Each mortgage banker applicant shall demonstrate a net worth at all times of at least \$100,000 or increase their posted continuous surety bond to a total amount of \$100,000. Each mortgage broker shall post a continuous surety bond in the amount of \$20,000 to the commissioner. Surety bonds shall include a provision requiring the surety to give written notice to the commissioner 20 days in advance of the cancellation or termination of the bond. Every bond shall provide that no recovery may be made against the bond unless the state makes a claim for recovery or the person brings suit naming the licensee within 6 years after the act upon which the recovery or suit is based.

(d) Each applicant shall provide a list of all individuals, and the address of the work location of each such individual, who will act as originators for the licensee.

(e) No person shall be issued or continue to hold a mortgage license unless at least one person employed full-time in a supervisory capacity at the company's principal office shall have been actively engaged in the mortgage business in a similar supervisory capacity for a minimum of 3 of the preceding 5 years.

IV. Every applicant for licensing under this chapter shall file with the commissioner, in such form as the commissioner prescribes by rule, irrevocable consent appointing the commissioner to receive service of any lawful process in any non-criminal suit, action, or proceeding against the applicant or the applicant's successor, executor, or administrator which arises under this chapter or any rule or order under this chapter after the consent has been filed, with the same force and validity as if served personally on the person filing the consent. A person who has filed such a consent in connection with a previous registration need not file another. When any person, including any nonresident of this state, engages in conduct prohibited or made actionable by this chapter or any rule or order under this chapter, and such person has not filed a consent to service of process under this section and personal jurisdiction over such person cannot otherwise be obtained in this state, that conduct shall be considered equivalent to such person's appointment of the commissioner to receive service of any lawful process. Service may be made by leaving a copy of the process in the office of the commissioner along with \$5, but is not effective unless:

(a) The plaintiff, who may be the attorney general in a suit, action, or proceeding instituted by him or her, forthwith sends a notice of the service and a copy of the process by registered mail to the defendant or respondent at such person's last address on file with the commissioner; and

(b) The plaintiff's affidavit of compliance with this paragraph is filed in the case on or before the return day of the process, if any, or within such further time as the court allows.

V.(a) Upon the applicant's filing of the complete application and payment of the required fee, the commissioner shall have, in accordance with RSA 541-A:29, up to 120 days to investigate and determine whether the applicant's financial resources, experience, personnel, and record of past or proposed conduct warrant the public's confidence and the issuance of a license.

(b) The commissioner shall determine whether the applicant's proposed interest rates and fees are in accordance with the interest rates and fees charged by other first or second mortgage lenders, and whether said rates and fees will promote a free and competitive market.

Amend RSA 397-A:13, IV as inserted by section 14 of the bill by replacing it with the following:

IV. Any ~~[first]~~ mortgage banker~~[-first]~~ **or** mortgage broker~~[-or first mortgage banker and broker]~~ failing to file either the annual report or the financial statement required by this section within the time prescribed may be required to pay to the ~~[banking]~~ department a penalty of \$25 for each calendar day the annual report or financial statement is overdue **up to a maximum penalty of \$2,500 per report or statement.** ~~[The penalties for failure to file an annual report that are prescribed by this paragraph shall not apply to mortgage brokers licensed under this chapter who earned no money from purchasing, placing, or selling first mortgage loans during the preceding year and who indicate such in writing to the banking department on or before February 1 to a maximum penalty of \$2,500 per report or statement and shall be subject to suspension or revocation of its license.]~~

Amend the bill by inserting after section 14 the following and renumbering the original sections 15-47 to read as 16-48, respectively:

15 New Paragraph; Annual Report; Reply Required. Amend RSA 397-A:13 by inserting after paragraph V the following new paragraph:

VI. Any officer, owner, manager, or agent of any licensee and any person controlling or having a contract under which he or she has a right to control such a licensee, whether exclusively or otherwise, and any person with executive authority over or in charge of any segment of such a licensee's affairs, shall reply promptly in writing, or in other designated form, to any written inquiry from the commissioner requesting a reply. The commissioner may require that any communication made to him or her under this section be verified.

Amend RSA 397-A:14-b as inserted by section 17 of the bill by replacing it with the following:

397-A:14-b Compliance With Requirements for Funding of Loans at Real Estate Closings. A licensee shall comply with the provisions of RSA 477:52 relative to requirements for the funding of loans at real estate closings. **At a minimum, a closing requires the delivery of a deed if the transaction is a conveyance, the signing of a note, and the disbursement of the mortgage loan funds.**

Amend the bill by replacing section 18 with the following:

18 Borrower's Rights; "First" and "Home" Deleted. Amend RSA 397-A:15, V to read as follows:

V. Persons subject to or licensed under this chapter that service ~~[first]~~ mortgage ~~[home]~~ loans on real property located in the state of New Hampshire shall, within 5 days of receipt of a written request, provide a net payoff amount as of a specific date with a daily interest rate charge.

Amend the bill by replacing section 20 with the following:

20 Lender's Rights and Broker's Rights. Amend RSA 397-A:16, I-IV to read as follows:

I. ~~[Lenders]~~ **Mortgage bankers and mortgage brokers** may charge fees and points for services rendered in conjunction with the origination, closing, and servicing of loans; provided, however, that the ~~[lender]~~ **mortgage banker or mortgage broker** issues a written disclosure to the borrower stating the estimated amount and purpose of all fees and expenses within 3 business days of the receipt of a loan application. If any fee is collected in advance of the closing of the loan, the ~~[lender]~~ **mortgage banker or mortgage broker** shall provide the borrower with a written explanation of the purpose and disposition of the fee. A ~~[lender]~~ **mortgage banker or mortgage broker** may charge an application fee which may include the direct costs incurred by the ~~[lender]~~ **mortgage banker or mortgage broker** for processing an application, and for a real estate appraisal, a credit bureau report, or ~~[for]~~ income verification or other third party services. Notwithstanding RSA 479:30, a borrower who pays a ~~[lender]~~ **mortgage banker or mortgage broker** a fee for a real estate appraisal report, or who pays an application fee to a ~~[lender]~~ **mortgage banker or mortgage broker** which includes costs for a real estate appraisal, whether designated as a separate fee therefor or not, shall, upon written request, be entitled to obtain from the ~~[lender]~~ **mortgage banker or mortgage broker who authorized and ordered the appraisal and whose name appears on the appraisal report** a copy of the real estate appraisal report. The ~~[lender]~~ **mortgage banker or mortgage broker** shall certify on such copy that it is a true copy of the original report. Such certified copy shall be provided to the borrower within 10 business days of the date the ~~[lender]~~ **mortgage banker or mortgage broker** receives a borrower's request, receives the report from the appraiser, or receives such application or appraisal fee from the borrower, whichever is last to occur.

II. ~~[Licensees]~~ **Persons** subject to the provisions of this chapter shall comply with the provisions of RSA 384:16-c, relative to escrow accounts.

III. [Licensees] **Persons** subject to provisions of this chapter shall comply with the provisions of RSA 479, relative to foreclosure.

IV. Pursuant to RSA 397-A:3, only mortgage brokers **and mortgage bankers** licensed under the provisions of this chapter shall be entitled to retain commissions for services rendered.

Amend RSA 399-A:3, I as inserted by section 27 of the bill by replacing it with the following:

I.(a) Every applicant for licensing under this chapter shall file with the commissioner a written verified application, on a form prescribed by the commissioner. The application shall contain the name of the applicant; the address where the business is or is to be conducted and similar information for any branch office of the applicant; the trade name, if any, under which the applicant proposes to conduct such business; the articles of incorporation or organization or partnership agreement; the name and address of the New Hampshire resident agent if the applicant is a foreign entity; and such other pertinent information as the commissioner may require. The application shall include the names of the applicant's principal owners, officers, directors, members, partners, trustees, and beneficiaries, and the name of any person occupying a similar status or performing similar functions. Each such principal shall authorize the commissioner to conduct a background check. The applicant shall submit any other information that the commissioner may require including, but not limited to, the applicant's form and place of organization, the applicant's proposed method of doing business, the qualifications and business history of the applicant and its principals, and the applicant's financial condition and history. The applicant shall disclose if any injunction or administrative order has been issued against the applicant or any of its principals and whether the applicant or any of its principals have been convicted of a misdemeanor involving the lending industry or any aspect of the lending business or of any felony. Each applicant and licensee who conducts payday or title loan lending shall maintain an office in this state that is accessible to consumers. Persons subject to this chapter shall be responsible for the supervision of their employees, agents, and branch offices. Each initial and renewal license application shall be accompanied by a nonrefundable application fee of \$450 for the principal place of business of the licensee and the sum of \$450 for each branch of such licensee maintained in this state.

(b) Unless the applicant is a publicly traded corporation, the department shall complete a background investigation and criminal history records check on the applicant's principals and any person in a similar position or performing similar functions. If the applicant is a subsidiary, the department shall complete a background investigation and criminal history records check on the principals of each equity owner of 10 percent or more of the applicant unless such equity owner is a publicly traded corporation.

(c) The persons described in subparagraph I(b) shall submit to the department a notarized criminal history records release form, as provided by the New Hampshire division of state police, which authorizes the release of the person's criminal records, if any. The person shall submit with the release form a complete set of fingerprints taken by a qualified law enforcement agency or an authorized employee of the banking department. In the event that the first set of fingerprints is invalid due to insufficient pattern, a second set of fingerprints is necessary in order to complete the criminal history records check. If, after 2 attempts, a set of fingerprints is invalid due to insufficient pattern, the department may, in lieu of the criminal history records check, accept police clearances from every city, town, or county where the person has lived during the past 5 years.

(d) The department shall submit the criminal history records release form to the New Hampshire division of state police which shall conduct a criminal history records check through its records and through the Federal Bureau of Investigation. Upon completion of the background investigation, the division of state police shall release copies of the criminal conviction records to the department. The department shall maintain the confidentiality of all criminal history records information received pursuant to this paragraph.

(e) The department may require the applicant or licensee to pay the actual costs of each background investigation and criminal history records check.

Amend the bill by replacing section 38 with the following:

38 Licensing of Sales Finance Companies and Retail Sellers Required; Additional Information Required. RSA 361-A:2, II(a) is repealed and reenacted to read as follows:

II.(a) The application for such license shall be in writing and verified on a form prescribed by the commissioner. The application shall contain the name of the applicant; date of incorporation, if incorporated; the address where the business is or is to be conducted and similar information as to any branch office of the applicant; the trade name, if any, under which the applicant proposes to conduct such business; and such



other pertinent information as the commissioner may require. The application shall include a list of the names and resident addresses of principal owners, officers, members, partners, trustees, and directors of the applicant and the name of any person occupying a similar status or performing similar functions. Each listed person shall authorize the commissioner to conduct a background check. The applicant shall submit any other information that the commissioner may require including but not limited to the applicant's form and place of organization, the applicant's proposed method of doing business, the qualifications and business history of the applicant and those persons listed in the application, and in the case of sales finance companies, the applicant's financial condition and history. The applicant shall disclose if any injunction or administrative order has been issued against the applicant or any of those persons listed in the application and whether the applicant or any of those persons listed in the application have been convicted of a misdemeanor involving the lending industry or any aspect of the lending business or convicted of any felony.

(1) Unless the applicant is a publicly traded corporation, the department shall complete a background investigation and criminal history records check on the applicant's principals and any person in a similar position or performing similar functions. If the applicant is a subsidiary, the department shall complete a background investigation and criminal history records check on the principals of each equity owner of 10 percent or more of the applicant unless such equity owner is a publicly traded corporation.

(2) The persons described in subparagraph II(a) shall submit to the department a notarized criminal history records release form, as provided by the New Hampshire division of state police, which authorizes the release of the person's criminal records, if any. The person shall submit with the release form a complete set of fingerprints taken by a qualified law enforcement agency or an authorized employee of the banking department. In the event that the first set of fingerprints is invalid due to insufficient pattern, a second set of fingerprints is necessary in order to complete the criminal history records check. If, after 2 attempts, a set of fingerprints is invalid due to insufficient pattern, the department may, in lieu of the criminal history records check, accept police clearances from every city, town, or county where the person has lived during the past 5 years.

(3) The department shall submit the criminal history records release form to the New Hampshire division of state police which shall conduct a criminal history records check through its records and through the Federal Bureau of Investigation. Upon completion of the background investigation, the division of state police shall release copies of the criminal conviction records to the department. The department shall maintain the confidentiality of all criminal history records information received pursuant to this paragraph.

(4) The department may require the applicant or licensee to pay the actual costs of each background investigation and criminal history records check.

Amend the bill by replacing all after section 46 with the following:

47 New Section; Lender's and Borrower's Rights; Second Mortgage Debt. Amend RSA 397-A by inserting after section 16 the following new section:

397-A:16-a Lender's and Borrower's Rights; Second Mortgage Debt.

I. The allowable rate of interest computed on the unpaid balance that any person may directly or indirectly charge, take, or receive for a second mortgage loan secured by property which is occupied in whole or in part at the time said loan is made as a home by any obligor on the mortgage debt or by any person granting or releasing any interest under said mortgage shall be the rate agreed upon in the note between borrower and lender, and following the sixth month of any period in which a loan has been in continuous default, not more than 1-1/2 percent per month on any unpaid balances.

II. Notwithstanding any other provisions of this chapter, the charges which may be collected on any second mortgage loan made under this chapter for the period beginning 6 months after the originally scheduled final installment date of a loan other than an open-end loan, or for the period beginning 6 months after the final due date of an open-end loan as established by the term applicable to the loan from time to time in accordance with the open-end note or loan agreement and ending with date of payment of the loan in full shall not exceed 18 percent per annum simple interest on the balances outstanding from time to time during said period. If the loan is an open-end loan the borrower's privilege for further loans shall not be reinstated by the licensee where the rate has been reduced under the preceding sentence unless the borrower executes a new open-end loan agreement.

III. The borrower shall have the right to anticipate his or her second mortgage debt in whole or in part upon payment of any prepayment penalty agreed upon between borrower and licensee, provided, however,

that any penalty shall be clearly set forth in the loan documents; except that there shall be no penalty charged for prepayment of a second mortgage home loan after the loan has been in existence for 5 years. When an open-end loan agreement providing for advances from time to time by the licensee exists between the borrower and the licensee, monthly loan payments shall be selected by the borrower as stated in the note or open-end agreement.

IV. Unless otherwise provided in the note, second mortgage loan payments shall be applied on the scheduled payment dates. Except where the borrower agrees in writing to a different application of his payments, in cases where partial payments are made, the interest shall be calculated to the time of payments, and such payment shall first be applied to interest, and the balance thereafter remaining, if any, shall be applied to principal. In addition to the interest permitted under this section, the lender may contract for and receive any additional other charge, as defined by RSA 358-K:1, XIII, as may be agreed upon by the lender and the borrower.

V. A licensee may retain any security interest in real property on an open-end loan until the open-end account is terminated, provided that if there is no outstanding balance in the account and there is no commitment by the licensee to make advances, the licensee shall within 10 days following written demand by the borrower deliver to the borrower a release of the mortgage or a request for reconveyance of the deed of trust on the real property taken as security.

VI. The repayment provisions of any second mortgage loan shall be clearly set forth in the loan documentation and finance charges shall be clearly disclosed in accordance with RSA 399-B. Nothing in this chapter shall be deemed to limit any type of mortgage or repayment plan.

VII. For second mortgage loans where the payment is applied on the date received, the licensee shall provide to the borrower, at the time of application for the loan, a separate written disclosure which explains how the payments will be applied.

VIII. Upon payment in full of the outstanding principal, interest, and other charges due on a second mortgage loan, the holder shall plainly mark the note or a copy thereof with the words 'PAID IN FULL' or 'CANCELLED' and release or provide the borrower evidence to release any mortgage or security instrument no longer securing any indebtedness to the holder. If the original is retained by the lender, the original shall be returned within a reasonable period of time upon the written request of the borrower.

IX. If any note secured by a second mortgage, in the case of loans other than open-end loans, does not among its provisions clearly indicate the principal sums, the rate of interest, the period of the loan and the periodic due dates, if any, of principal and interest or, in the case of open-end loans, if the note does not among its provisions clearly indicate the maximum amount of credit available, the rate of interest, the selected payment, or its manner of determination, and the related period or periods of repayment and the monthly or periodic due dates, then the lender shall have no right to collect interest.

X. If any note secured by a second mortgage, in the case of loans other than open-end loans, does not among its provisions clearly indicate the principal sums, the rate of interest, the period of the loan, and the periodic due dates, if any, of principal and interest or, in the case of open-end loans, if the note does not among its provisions clearly indicate the maximum amount of credit available, the rate of interest, the selected payment, or its manner of determination, and the related period or periods of repayment and the monthly or periodic due dates, then the lender shall have no right to collect interest.

XI. If the borrower on a second mortgage loan or his or her authorized representative requests, by registered mail, the lender to furnish him or her with a copy of the note, the lender shall, within 15 days after receipt of said request, send by registered mail a true copy of said note to the person requesting the same at the address specified in such request. At least 15 days prior to the commencement of any foreclosure proceedings the lender shall send to the borrower by registered mail a statement of his or her intention to foreclose which shall specify the amount of principal, interest and other indebtedness, if any, owing and accruing under the note and mortgage. Failure of the lender to comply with the provisions of this section shall suspend his or her rights until such time as he or she complies with the provisions of this section.

XII. Upon payment of any money by the borrower on a second mortgage loan, the lender shall at the request of the borrower give him or her a receipt stating the date of payment, the amount paid, the amount applicable to interest on the loan and the amount applicable to the principal. Such receipt shall be signed by the lender or the lender's duly authorized representative. If a lender refuses, on written demand sent by registered mail, to give such receipt, the lender shall forfeit all interest on the principal sum.



XIII. Any second mortgage loan made in violation of paragraphs I-VIII by any person shall be discharged upon payment or tender by the debtor or any person succeeding to his or her interest in such real estate of the principal sum actually borrowed. Any agreement whereby the borrower waives the benefits of paragraphs I-VIII or releases any rights he or she may have acquired by virtue thereof shall be deemed against public policy and void. The superior court shall have jurisdiction of all suits arising under paragraphs I-VIII and, if a finding is made that such loan secured by any such mortgage violates paragraphs I-VIII, the borrower shall be entitled as a part of his or her costs to a reasonable fee for the services of an attorney in such suit.

48 License Revocation; Suspension; Unsworn Falsification Added. Amend RSA 397-A:17, I(l)-(m) to read as follows:

- (l) Has violated applicable federal laws or rules thereunder; ~~[or]~~
- (m) ***Has made an unsworn falsification under RSA 641:3 to the commissioner; or***
- (n) For other good cause shown.

49 New Paragraph; Investigation of Application; License Requirements. Amend RSA 399-A:4 by inserting after paragraph XI the following new paragraph:

XII. Any officer, owner, manager or agent of any licensee and any person controlling or having a contract under which he or she has a right to control such a licensee, whether exclusively or otherwise, and any person with executive authority over or in charge of any segment of such a licensee's affairs, shall reply promptly in writing, or in other designated form, to any written inquiry from the commissioner requesting a reply. The commissioner may require that any communication made to him or her under this section be verified.

50 Denial, Suspension, or Revocation of Licenses; Unsworn Falsification Added. Amend RSA 399-A:7, I(i)-(j) to read as follows:

- (i) Has violated this chapter or any rule or order thereunder or has violated applicable federal laws or rules thereunder; ~~[or]~~
- (j) ***Has made an unsworn falsification under RSA 641:3 to the commissioner; or***
- (k) Should not be licensed for other good cause shown.

51 Debt Adjustment Services; License Denial, Revocation, or Suspension. Amend RSA 399-D:13, I(n)-(o) to read as follows:

- (n) Is insolvent, or has filed in bankruptcy or receivership, or made assignments for the benefit of creditors; ~~[or]~~
- (o) ***Has violated this chapter or any rule or order thereunder;***
- (p) ***Has made an unsworn falsification under RSA 641:3 to the commissioner; or***
- (q) For other good cause shown.

52 Debt Adjustment Services; Reporting and Recordkeeping Requirements. Amend RSA 399-D:28, I(c) to read as follows:

(c) Each licensee shall also file, under oath, its financial statement with the commissioner within ~~[60]~~ **90** days from the date of its fiscal year end. The financial statement shall be prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and shall include a balance sheet, income statement, statement of changes in owners' equity, a cash flow statement, and note disclosures. If the financial statement is not audited, a certification statement shall be attached and signed by a duly authorized officer of the licensee. The certification statement shall state that the financial statement is true and accurate to the best of the officer's belief and knowledge.

53 New Paragraph; Debt Adjustment Services; Duty to Reply. Amend RSA 399-D:28 by inserting after paragraph VI the following new paragraph:

VII. Any officer, owner, manager or agent of any licensee and any person controlling or having a contract under which he or she has a right to control such a licensee, whether exclusively or otherwise, and any person with executive authority over or in charge of any segment of such a licensee's affairs, shall reply promptly in writing, or in other designated form, to any written inquiry from the commissioner requesting a reply. The commissioner may require that any communication made to him or her under this section be verified.

54 New Paragraph; Retail Installment Sales of Motor Vehicles; Duty to Reply. Amend RSA 361-A:2-b by inserting after paragraph V the following new paragraph:

VI. Any officer, owner, manager or agent of any licensee and any person controlling or having a contract under which he or she has a right to control such a licensee, whether exclusively or otherwise, and any person with executive authority over or in charge of any segment of such a licensee's affairs, shall reply promptly in writing, or in other designated form, to any written inquiry from the commissioner requesting a reply. The commissioner may require that any communication made to him or her under this section be verified.

55 Retail Installment Sales of Motor Vehicles; Suspension or Revocation of License; Unsworn Falsification Added. Amend RSA 361-A:3, I-a(i)-(j) to read as follows:

(i) Has violated this chapter or any rule or order thereunder or has violated applicable federal laws or rules thereunder; [or]

(j) ***Has made an unsworn falsification under RSA 641:3 to the commissioner; or***

(k) For other good cause shown.

56 Administration by Commissioner; Rulemaking; Unsworn Falsification Added. Amend RSA 397-B:3, IX(g)-(h) to read as follows:

(g) Has violated this chapter or any rule or order thereunder or has violated applicable federal laws or rules thereunder; [or]

(h) ***Has made an unsworn falsification under RSA 641:3 to the commissioner; or***

(i) For other good cause shown.

57 Mortgage Bankers and Brokers; Registration. RSA 397-B:4, I is repealed and reenacted to read as follows:

I. (a) Any mortgage servicing company which services first mortgage loans secured by real property located in the state of New Hampshire shall be required to register with the banking department by filing a registration statement on a form prescribed by the commissioner and paying an original registration fee of \$100. Each such registration shall expire on December 31 of each calendar year. A registration may be renewed by filing a renewal statement on a form prescribed by the commissioner and paying a renewal registration fee of \$50, on or before, December 1 for registration for the ensuing year. Sums collected under this chapter shall be payable to the state treasurer as restricted revenue and credited to the appropriation of the commissioner, consumer credit administration division.

(b) The applicant shall submit any other information that the commissioner may require including, but not limited to, the applicant's form and place of organization and the applicant's proposed method of doing business. The applicant shall disclose whether the applicant or any of its principals has ever been issued or been the subject of an injunction or administrative order, has ever been convicted of a misdemeanor involving the lending industry or any aspect of the lending business, or has ever been convicted of any felony. Each principal shall authorize the commissioner to conduct a background check.

(c) Unless the applicant is a publicly traded corporation, the department shall complete a background investigation and criminal history records check on the applicant's principals and any person in a similar position or performing similar functions. If the applicant is a subsidiary, the department shall complete a background investigation and criminal history records check on the principals of each equity owner of 10 percent or more of the applicant unless such equity owner is a publicly traded corporation.

(d) The persons described in subparagraph I(c) shall submit to the department a notarized criminal history records release form, as provided by the New Hampshire division of state police, which authorizes the release of the person's criminal records, if any. The person shall submit with the release form a complete set of fingerprints taken by a qualified law enforcement agency or an authorized employee of the banking department. In the event that the first set of fingerprints is invalid due to insufficient pattern, a second set of fingerprints is necessary in order to complete the criminal history records check. If, after 2 attempts, a set of fingerprints is invalid due to insufficient pattern, the department may, in lieu of the criminal history records check, accept police clearances from every city, town, or county where the person has lived during the past 5 years.

(e) The department shall submit the criminal history records release form to the New Hampshire division of state police which shall conduct a criminal history records check through its records and through

the Federal Bureau of Investigation. Upon completion of the background investigation, the division of state police shall release copies of the criminal conviction records to the department. The department shall maintain the confidentiality of all criminal history records information received pursuant to this paragraph.

(f) The department may require the applicant or licensee to pay the actual costs of the background investigation and a criminal history records check.

58 New Section; Mortgage Bankers and Mortgage Brokers; Duty to Reply. Amend RSA 397-B by inserting after section 4-a the following new section:

397-B:4-b Duty to Reply. Any officer, owner, manager or agent of any registrant and any person controlling or having a contract under which he or she has a right to control such a registrant, whether exclusively or otherwise, and any person with executive authority over or in charge of any segment of such a registrant's affairs, shall reply promptly in writing, or in other designated form, to any written inquiry from the commissioner requesting a reply. The commissioner may require that any communication made to him or her under this section be verified.

59 Repeal. The following are repealed:

I. RSA 398-A, relative to second mortgage home loans.

II. RSA 397-A:15, V-a, relative to a requirement that a mortgage payoff amount be provided within 5 days of receipt of a written request.

60 Effective Date. This act shall take effect July 1, 2005.

## HEARINGS

***TUESDAY, MARCH 22, 2005***

### **BANKS AND INSURANCE**, Room 102, LOB

Sen. Flanders (C), Sen. Roberge (VC), Sen. Barnes, Sen. Odell, Sen. Foster, Sen. Gottesman

10:15 a.m.

#### **EXECUTIVE SESSION ON PENDING LEGISLATION**

**SB 6-FN**, relative to small group insurers.

**SB 64**, establishing a committee to study small group health insurance plans.

**SB 67**, eliminating health status as a rating factor for small group health insurance.

**SB 118-FN**, repealing certain provisions of law regarding small group health insurance.

**SB 125-FN**, relative to small group health insurance and relative to reinsurance.

### **ENVIRONMENT AND WILDLIFE**, Room 103, LOB

Sen. Johnson (C), Sen. Gallus (VC), Sen. Barnes, Sen. Gatsas, Sen. Hassan

1:00 p.m.

**SB 121**, relative to all terrain vehicle trails and relative to the regulation of off highway recreational vehicles by a political subdivision.

1:30 p.m.

**SB 122**, relative to the procedure for approval of solid waste facilities.

2:00 p.m.

**SB 187**, relative to allowing alternative certified hazardous waste coordinator programs.

2:30 p.m.

**SB 179**, requiring hunters to report the death or injury of domestic animals.

#### **EXECUTIVE SESSION MAY FOLLOW**

### **FINANCE**, Room 103, SH

Sen. Morse (C), Sen. Boyce (VC), Sen. Clegg, Sen. Eaton, Sen. Odell, Sen. D'Allesandro, Sen. Larsen

8:45 a.m.

#### **EXECUTIVE SESSION ON PENDING LEGISLATION**

Agency Presentations on the Governor's Proposed Budget

9:15 a.m.

Treasury Department

9:45 a.m.

Judicial Council

Members of the House Finance Committee are welcome to attend the Agency Presentations on the Governor's Proposed Budget.

**HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES**, Room 101, LOB

Sen. Martel (C), Sen. Kenney (VC), Sen. Gallus, Sen. Letourneau, Sen. Estabrook, Sen. Fuller Clark

10:15 a.m.

**SJR 3**, encouraging the New Hampshire Congressional delegation to support the federal Child Custody Protection Act.

10:40 a.m.

**EXECUTIVE SESSION ON PENDING LEGISLATION**

**JUDICIARY**, Room 105-A, SH

Sen. Foster(C), Sen. Clegg (VC), Sen. Green, Sen. Letourneau, Sen. Roberge, Sen. Gottesman

1:00 p.m.

**SB 167**, relative to extension of guardianship.

1:30 p.m.

**SB 168**, relative to administration of estates.

1:45 p.m.

**SB 186**, allowing probate court judges and district court justices to sit on probate or district court cases.

2:00 p.m.

**SB 134**, relative to medical decision making for those adults without capacity to make health care decisions for themselves and establishing procedures for Do Not Resuscitate Orders.

***(NOTE THE TIME CHANGE FOR SB 134)***

**EXECUTIVE SESSION MAY FOLLOW**

***WEDNESDAY, MARCH 23, 2005***

**EXECUTIVE DEPARTMENTS AND ADMINISTRATION**, Room 102, LOB

Sen. Kenney (C), Sen. Flanders (VC), Sen. Barnes, Sen. Letourneau, Sen. Fuller Clark, Sen. Hassan

1:00 p.m.

**SB 190-L**, relative to workforce housing opportunities.

**EXECUTIVE SESSION MAY FOLLOW**

**FINANCE**, Room 103, SH

Sen. Morse (C), Sen. Boyce (VC), Sen. Clegg, Sen. Eaton, Sen. Odell, Sen. D'Allesandro, Sen. Larsen

11:00 a.m.

Agency Presentations on the Governor's Proposed Budget

Department of Health and Human Services

Members of the House Finance Committee are welcome to attend Agency Presentations on the Governor's Proposed Budget

**TRANSPORTATION AND INTERSTATE COOPERATION**, Room 100, SH

Sen. Letourneau (C), Sen. Morse (VC), Sen. Flanders, Sen. Martel, Sen. Burling, Sen. Estabrook

8:15 a.m.

**SB 227**, naming a certain bridge in the town of Enfield the Henry P. Brown, M.D. Bridge.

8:35 a.m.

**SB 226**, relative to the regulation of snowmobiles and off highway recreational vehicles.

***(NOTE THE TIME CHANGE FOR SB 226)***

**EXECUTIVE SESSION MAY FOLLOW**

***TUESDAY, MARCH 29, 2005***

**JUDICIARY**, Room 100, SH

Sen. Foster(C), Sen. Clegg (VC), Sen. Green, Sen. Letourneau, Sen. Roberge, Sen. Gottesman

1:00 p.m.

**SB 196**, establishing a joint legislative committee to study medical malpractice insurance rates.

1:30 p.m. **SB 205**, relative to private actions under the consumer protection act.  
 2:00 p.m. **SB 214**, relative to screening panels for medical injury claims.  
**EXECUTIVE SESSION MAY FOLLOW**

## ***WEDNESDAY, MARCH 30, 2005***

### **PUBLIC AND MUNICIPAL AFFAIRS**, Room 100, SH

Sen. Roberge (C), Sen. Larsen (VC), Sen. Barnes, Sen. Kenney, Sen. Martel, Sen. Burling

10:15 a.m. **EXECUTIVE SESSION ON PENDING LEGISLATION**

**SB 81**, providing recourse for homeowners in manufactured housing parks who are confronted with unjustifiable rent increases.

**SB 88**, relative to emergency medical transportation.

### **WAYS & MEANS**, Room 103, SH

Sen. D'Allesandro (C), Sen. Clegg (VC), Sen. Boyce, Sen. Gallus, Sen. Odell

1:00 p.m. Revenue Estimate Updates

## **MEETINGS**

### ***MONDAY, MARCH 21, 2005***

#### **ENERGY PLANNING ADVISORY BOARD** (SB 443, Chapter 164:2, I, Laws of 2004)

1:00 p.m.	Room 105-A, SH	Organizational Meeting
-----------	----------------	------------------------

#### **PET OVERPOPULATION COMMITTEE** (RSA 437-A:7)

1:00 p.m.	Room 100, SH	Regular Meeting
-----------	--------------	-----------------

### ***WEDNESDAY, MARCH 23, 2005***

#### **FISCAL COMMITTEE OF THE GENERAL COURT** (RSA 14:30-a)

9:00 a.m.	Rooms 210-211, LOB	Regular Business
9:30 a.m.	Rooms 210-211, LOB	Audits:
		State of New Hampshire
		Lottery Commission
		Management Letter
		For the Fiscal Year Ended
		June 30, 2004
		State of New Hampshire
		Department of Health and
		Human Services
		Division of Behavioral Health
		New Hampshire Hospital
		Financial and Compliance
		Audit Report
		For the Fiscal Year Ended
		June 30, 2003
		State of New Hampshire
		Single Audit of Federal Financial
		Assistance Programs
		For the Year Ended June 30, 2004

#### **NH DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION** (Portsmouth 13455, 12900 US Route 1 Bypass Study)

10:00 a.m.	Portsmouth Public Work 680 Peverly Hill Road Portsmouth, NH	Advisory Committee Meeting
------------	---	----------------------------



**NH DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION** (Governor's Advisory Commission on inter-modal Transportation)

2:00 p.m. Council Chambers SH GACIT Meeting  
107 N. Main St.  
Concord, NH

**JOINT COMMITTEE ON LEGISLATIVE FACILITIES** (RSA 17-E:2)

3:15 p.m. Room 103, SH Regular Meeting

***FRIDAY, MARCH 25, 2005***

**ASSESSING STANDARDS BOARD** (RSA 21-J:14-a)

9:30 a.m. 45 Chenell Dr. Regular Meeting  
Concord, NH

***MONDAY, MARCH 28, 2005***

**OIL FUND DISBURSEMENT BOARD** (RSA 146-D:4)

9:00 a.m. Room 305, LOB Regular Meeting

**COMMISSION ON EDUCATION OF DEAF AND HARD OF HEARING PERSONS IN NEW HAMPSHIRE** (HB 1283, Chapter 43:1, Laws of 2000)

10:00 a.m. Room 105-A, SH Regular Meeting

***FRIDAY, APRIL 1, 2005***

**JOINT LEGISLATIVE COMMITTEE ON ADMINISTRATIVE RULES** (RSA 541-A:2)

9:00 a.m. Rooms 306-308, LOB Continued Meeting

***MONDAY, APRIL 4, 2005***

**LEGISLATIVE ETHICS COMMITTEE** (RSA 14-B:2)

9:00 a.m. Room 100, SH Regular Meeting

**BOARD OF MANUFACTURED HOUSING** (RSA 205-A:25)

1:00 p.m. Room 201, LOB Regular Meeting

**COMMISSION TO STUDY ALL ASPECTS OF SAME SEX CIVIL MARRIAGE AND THE LEGAL EQUIVALENTS THEREOF, WHETHER REFERRED TO AS CIVIL UNIONS, DOMESTIC PARTNERSHIPS, OR OTHERWISE** (SB 427, Chapter 100:2, Laws of 2004)

1:00 p.m. Room 208, LOB Regular Meeting

**NH BRAIN AND SPINAL CORD INJURY ADVISORY COUNCIL** (RSA 137-K:2)

2:00 p.m. Room 104, LOB Regular Meeting

***THURSDAY, APRIL 7, 2005***

**NH DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION** (Pembroke-Concord 14341 Paving NH Route 106 beginning at US Route 3 intersection in Pembroke & proceeding north approximately 4.5 miles to the Autumn Street intersection in Concord. Also address minor drainage issues and update guardrails.)

7:00 p.m. Pembroke Town Library Combined Public Informational/  
261 Pembroke Street Public Officials Meeting  
Pembroke, NH

***FRIDAY, APRIL 8, 2005***

**NH LAND AND COMMUNITY HERITAGE AUTHORITY BOARD OF DIRECTORS** (RSA 227-M:4)

9:00 a.m. CDFA Board Room Regular Meeting  
10 Dixon Avenue  
Concord, NH 03301

**GOVERNOR'S COMMISSION ON ALCOHOL AND DRUG ABUSE PREVENTION, INTERVENTION, AND TREATMENT (RSA 12-J:1)**

9:30 a.m. Rooms 201-203, LOB Regular Meeting

***MONDAY, APRIL 11, 2005***

**GUARDIAN AD LITEM BOARD (RSA 490-C:1)**

1:00 p.m. Room 102, LOB Regular Meeting

***FRIDAY, APRIL 15, 2005***

**JOINT LEGISLATIVE COMMITTEE ON ADMINISTRATIVE RULES (RSA 541-A:2)**

9:00 a.m. Rooms 306-308, LOB Regular Meeting

***FRIDAY, APRIL 22, 2005***

**ASSESSING STANDARDS BOARD (RSA 21-J:14-a)**

9:30 a.m. 57 Regional Dr. Regular Meeting  
Concord, NH

***MONDAY, MAY 2, 2005***

**NH BRAIN AND SPINAL CORD INJURY ADVISORY COUNCIL (RSA 137-K:2)**

2:00 p.m. Room 104, LOB Regular Meeting

***FRIDAY, MAY 6, 2005***

**JOINT LEGISLATIVE COMMITTEE ON ADMINISTRATIVE RULES (RSA 541-A:2)**

9:00 a.m. Rooms 306-308, LOB Continued Meeting

***MONDAY, MAY 9, 2005***

**NH LAND AND COMMUNITY HERITAGE AUTHORITY BOARD OF DIRECTORS (RSA 227-M:4)**

9:00 a.m. CDFA Board Room Regular Meeting  
10 Dixon Avenue  
Concord, NH 03301

**GUARDIAN AD LITEM BOARD (RSA 490-C:1)**

1:00 p.m. Room 102, LOB Regular Meeting

***FRIDAY, MAY 20, 2005***

**JOINT LEGISLATIVE COMMITTEE ON ADMINISTRATIVE RULES (RSA 541-A:2)**

9:00 a.m. Rooms 306-308, LOB Regular Meeting

**DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITY WAITLIST FUND ALLOCATION OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE (RSA 171-A:1-c)**

10:00 a.m. Room 205, LOB Regular Meeting

\* \* \* \* \*

**FISCAL NOTE ADDITIONS AND UPDATES HAVE BEEN AMENDED TO THE BILLS ON THE WEB SITE AND ARE AVAILABLE IN THE SENATE CLERK'S OFFICE FOR THE FOLLOWING 2005 SENATE BILLS: 6, 21, 27, 33, 35, 48, 58, 62, 63, 79, 92, 94, 101, 102, 106, 107, 110, 114, 118, 127, 128, 129, 131, 134, 135, 144, 146, 151, 152, 153, 154, 157, 163, 164, 165, 180, 182, 184, 194, 197, 200, 206, 208, 210, 219, 222, 225**

\* \* \* \* \*

## NOTICES

The State House Activities & Recreation Committee (SHARC) would like to thank everyone who participated in the bake sale to support our troops. It was a wonderful success. Over \$1,000 was raised for care packages to the soldiers.

Senator Maggie Wood Hassan

\* \* \* \* \*

### WEDNESDAY, MARCH 23, 2005

Ski New Hampshire and its member ski areas throughout the state cordially invite all State Senators and Staff to a reception at the Red Blazer Restaurant on Wednesday, March 23<sup>rd</sup> from 4:00 p.m. - 7:00 p.m. The Red Blazer Restaurant is located in Concord on Manchester Street (exit 13 off of Interstate 93). Come celebrate another great winter season with people who work in the business that is New Hampshire's Official State Sport: Skiing!!

Senator Carl R. Johnson

\* \* \* \* \*

### THURSDAY, MARCH 24, 2005

The 2005-2006 Senate Portrait will be taken on Thursday, March 24<sup>th</sup> at 9:30 a.m. in the Senate Chamber.

Thomas R. Eaton, Senate President

\* \* \* \* \*

### THURSDAY, MARCH 24, 2005

Interested legislators are encouraged to attend a seminar sponsored by the National Conference of State Legislatures on methamphetamines. The newest wave of illegal drugs is sweeping the country and is starting to show up here in the northeast. Your constituents will soon be asking you what can be done about this new surge similar to the crack cocaine surge of the '80s and '90s. Methamphetamine is a highly addictive stimulant that generates brief euphoric highs, keeps people awake for days and can induce violence and paranoia. We are fortunate that NCSL has agreed to sponsor a three hour seminar to bring us up to date on its effect, its prevention, its treatment, its effect on the brain, etc. Some of the top experts from around the nation will be on the panel. You won't want to miss this rare opportunity to be ahead of the curve by attending this major proactive conference. Legislators, educators, medical care givers, mental health workers and others are welcome at no charge. There will be seating for 400 people at the C.R. Sparks Conference Center in Bedford on March 24<sup>th</sup> from 3:00 p.m. to 6:00 p.m. Light refreshments will be provided.

Senator André A. Martel

\* \* \* \* \*

### TUESDAY, MARCH 29, 2005

The University of New Hampshire Alumni Association and Parents Association are pleased to invite members of the New Hampshire General Court & staff to the annual UNH Legislative Breakfast on Tuesday, March 29 from 7:30 to 9:00 a.m. at the New Hampshire Historical Society Tuck Library, Park Street, Concord. Learn how undergraduate student researchers at UNH are having an impact on the State of New Hampshire and beyond.

Senator Iris W. Estabrook

\* \* \* \* \*

**WEDNESDAY, MARCH 30, 2005**

Brigadier General Kenneth R. Clark and The New Hampshire National Guard request the pleasure of your company at a Legislative Breakfast at 7:45 a.m. on Wednesday, the 30<sup>th</sup> of March 2005, at the Holiday Inn, 172 North Main Street Concord, New Hampshire.

R.S.V.P. by 9 March, Phone: 603-225-1334 e-mail: valerie.hanson@nh.ngb.army.mil

Thomas R. Eaton, Senate President

\* \* \* \* \*

**THURSDAY, MARCH 31, 2005**

In celebration of the YMCA Youth in Government Program and Legislative Awareness Day, all legislators are cordially invited to join the New Hampshire State Alliance of YMCA's at St. Paul's Church Conference Center across the street from the State House on Thursday, March 31 starting at 12:00 p.m. for an informal luncheon reception. Sandwiches, hot and cold drinks, and dessert will be provided.

Senator Sylvia B. Larsen

\* \* \* \* \*

**TUESDAY, APRIL 5, 2005**

Teamsters Local 633 cordially invites all legislators and staff to attend their legislative reception to be held on Tuesday, April 5th, 2005 at the Szechuan Garden Restaurant, 108 Fishersville Road, Concord, NH. The event will be held from 3:30 p.m. to 6:00 p.m. Refreshments will be provided.

Senator Lou D'Allesandro

\* \* \* \* \*

**SENATE SCHEDULE**

Thursday, April 7, 2005	Last day to act on all Senate bills in the first body
Monday, May 30, 2005	Memorial Day (State Holiday)
Thursday, June 9, 2005	Last day for Senate to act on all House bills in the first year session
Thursday, June 16, 2005	Last day to form a Committee of Conference in the first year session
Wednesday, June 22, 2005, 3:00 p.m.	Deadline for Committee of Conference report sign-offs
Wednesday, June 29, 2005	Deadline for Senate to act on Committee of Conference reports
Monday, July 4, 2005	Independence Day (State Holiday)

***VISITORS CENTER SCHEDULE - MARCH*****State House Visitation Schedule 2005 School Year**

Virginia Drew, Public Information Administrator

Kenneth Leidner, Director

<b><i>DATE</i></b>	<b><i>TIME</i></b>	<b><i>GROUP</i></b>	<b><i>Grade/Size</i></b>
M Mar 21	9:00	Dunbarton Elementary School	4/37
M Mar 21	10:30	Wells Memorial – Harrisville	4/12
M Mar 21	12:30	Sanbornton Central School	4/44
T Mar 22	9:00	Bow Elem	4/24
T Mar 22	10:30	East Kingston Elementary	4/33
Tu Mar 22	12:00	Bow Elem	4/24

<b><i>DATE</i></b>	<b><i>TIME</i></b>	<b><i>GROUP</i></b>	<b><i>Grade/Size</i></b>
W Mar 23	9:00	Bow Elem	4/24
W Mar 23	10:00	Timberlane Homeschool History Club	12 students
W Mar 23	10:00	Sant Bani School- Sanbornton	4/16
W Mar 23	12:00	Bow Elem	4/24
Th Mar 24	9:30 & 1100 SH & HM	Barnstead Elementary	4/50
Th Mar 24	12:30	Maplewood Elementary – Somersworth	4/40
F Mar 25	9:30 & 11:00 & 12:30 SH/HM/SC	Jaffrey Grade School	4/80
M Mar 28	9:30 & 10:30 SH & HM	DAR Good Citizens	HS/100+
M Mar 28	12:45	St. Thomas Aquinas – Derry	4/30
Tu Mar 29	9:00	Bow Elem	4/24
Tu Mar 29	10:30 (9:30 Conc.Coach)	Bridgewater/Hebron Village School	4/25
Tu Mar 29	12:00	Bow Elem	4/24
W Mar 30	9:30 & 11:00 SH & HM	Symonds School – Keene	4/63
W Mar 30	12:30	Newfields Elementary	4/26
Th Mar 31	9:30 & 11:00 SH & HM	Presentation of Mary – Hudson	4/44
Th Mar 31	12:30	St Patrick School – Pelham	4&5/45